

Senate Calendar

MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2013

SENATE CONVENES AT: NOON

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

ACTION CALENDAR

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF APRIL 24, 2013

Third Reading

- S. 165** Collective bargaining for deputy state's attorneys 1230

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF APRIL 26, 2013

Third Reading

- H. 205** An act relating to professions and occupations 1230
Amendment - Sen. Sears 1230

Second Reading

Favorable

- H. 169** An act relating to relieving employers' experience-rating records
Finance Report - Sen. Galbraith 1230
Appropriations Report - Sen. Westman 1231
Amendment - Sens. Mullin, et al 1231

Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

- S. 55** Increasing efficiency in state government finance and lending operations
Government Operations Report - Sen. Pollina 1232
Finance Report - Sen. Hartwell 1235
Appropriations Report - Sen. Starr 1235
Amendment - Sen. Ashe 1235

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 99 An act relating to equal pay
Econ. Dev., Housing and General Affairs Report - Sen. Mullin 1237
Appropriations Report - Sen. Fox 1241

H. 178 An act relating to anatomical gifts
Health and Welfare Report - Sen. Ayer 1241
Appropriations Report - Sen. Fox 1242

Report of Committee of Conference

H. 131 An act relating to harvesting guidelines and standards 1242

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 474 An act relating to amending the membership and charge of the
Government Accountability Committee..... 1243

H. 525 An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the Town
of Stowe..... 1243

H. 529 An act relating to approval of an amendment to the charter of the
Winooski Incorporated School District related to the term of district treasurer
..... 1243

NOTICE CALENDAR

Second Reading

Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

S. 37 The creation of a tax increment financing district
Finance Report - Sen. Ashe 1243

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 515 An act relating to miscellaneous agricultural subjects
Agriculture Report - Sen. Starr 1260

H. 521 An act relating to making miscellaneous amendments to education law
Education Report - Sen. McCormack 1270

H. 528 An act relating to revenue changes for fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year
2015
Finance Report - Sen. Ashe 1285

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 1 Consideration of financial cost of criminal sentencing options
House Proposal of Amendment 1301

S. 47 Protection orders and second degree domestic assault
House Proposal of Amendment..... 1303

S. 151 Miscellaneous changes to the laws governing commercial motor vehicle
licensing and operation
House Proposal of Amendment..... 1311

S. 161 Mitigation of traffic fines and approval of a DLS Diversion Program
contract
House Proposal of Amendment..... 1312

ORDERS OF THE DAY

ACTION CALENDAR

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF WEDNESDAY, APRIL 24, 2013

Third Reading

S. 165.

An act relating to collective bargaining for deputy state's attorneys.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS OF FRIDAY, APRIL 26, 2013

Third Reading

H. 205.

An act relating to professions and occupations regulated by the Office of Professional Regulation.

**PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 205 TO BE OFFERED BY
SENATOR SEARS BEFORE THIRD READING**

Senator Sears moves that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding a new section, to be Sec. 47a, to read:

* * * Barbers and Cosmetologists * * *

Sec. 47a. AMENDMENT TO RULES OF THE BOARD OF BARBERS
AND COSMETOLOGISTS

By March 31, 2014, the Board of Barbers and Cosmetologists (the "Board") shall amend Rule 12.3 of the Board to allow in a shop, including in an immediate work area of a shop, any cat or dog belonging to the owner or to an employee of that shop.

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 169.

An act relating to relieving employers' experience-rating records.

Reported favorably by Senator Galbraith for the Committee on Finance.

(Committee vote: 6-0-1)

(For House amendments, see House Journal of April 2, 2013, page 621.)

Reported favorably by Senator Westman for the Committee on Appropriations.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

PROPOSAL OF AMENDMENT TO H. 169 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATORS MULLIN, BENNING, FLORY, GALBRAITH, MAZZA, McALLISTER, SEARS, STARR, SNELLING, AND WESTMAN

Senators Mullin, Benning, Flory, Galbraith, Mazza, McAllister, Sears, Starr, Snelling, and Westman move that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: By striking out Sec. 4 (effective date) in its entirety and by inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 4 to read as follows:

Sec. 4. 21 V.S.A. § 1301 is amended to read:

§ 1301. DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases, as used in this chapter, shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

* * *

(6)(A)(i) “Employment,” subject to the other provisions of this subdivision (6), means service within the jurisdiction of this ~~state~~ State, performed prior to January 1, 1978, which was employment as defined in this subdivision prior to such date and, subject to the other provisions of this subdivision, service performed after December 31, 1977, by an employee, as defined in subsections 3306(i) and (o) of the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, including service in interstate commerce, performed for wages or under any contract of hire, written or oral, expressed or implied. Services partly within and partly without this ~~state~~ State may by election as hereinbefore provided be treated as if wholly within the jurisdiction of this ~~state~~ State. And whenever an employing unit shall have elected to come under the provisions of a similar act of a state where a part of the services of an employee are performed, the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner, upon his or her approval of said election as to any such employee, may treat the services covered by said approved election as having been performed wholly without the jurisdiction of this ~~state~~ State.

* * *

(C) The term “employment” shall not include:

* * *

(xxi) Service performed by a direct seller if the individual is in compliance with all the following:

(I) The individual is engaged in:

(aa) the trade or business of selling or soliciting the sale of consumer products, including services or other intangibles, in the home or a location other than in a permanent retail establishment, including whether the sale or solicitation of a sale is to any buyer on a buy-sell basis, a deposit-commission basis, or any similar basis for resale by the buyer or any other person; or

(bb) the trade or business of the delivery or distribution of newspapers or shopping news, including any services directly related to such trade or business.

(II) Substantially all the remuneration, whether or not received in cash, for the performance of the services described in subdivision (I) of this subdivision (C)(xxi) is directly related to sales or other output, including the performance of services, rather than to the number of hours worked.

(III) The services performed by the individual are performed pursuant to a written contract between the individual and the person for whom the services are performed, and the contract provides that the individual will not be treated as an employee for federal and state tax purposes.

* * *

Second: By adding a Sec. 5 to read as follows:

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATES

This act shall take effect on passage except that Sec. 4 of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013.

Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

S. 55.

An act relating to increasing efficiency in state government finance and lending operations.

Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Pollina for the Committee on Government Operations.

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES TASK FORCE

(a) Creation of task force. There is created a State Financial and Lending Efficiency Task Force to evaluate state government operations relating to finance and lending, grant-making, investing, and banking.

(b) Membership. The Task Force shall be composed of the following members:

(1) The Secretary of Commerce and Community Development or designee.

(2) The President of the Vermont Community Foundation or designee.

(3) A business entrepreneur with relevant financial services experience, appointed by the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(4) A current officer or executive of a Vermont-based banking institution, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

(5) The Vermont State Treasurer or designee.

(6) One member of the Vermont House of Representatives, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

(7) One member of the Vermont Senate, appointed by the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(8) The Executive Director of the Vermont Economic Development Authority or designee.

(9) The executive director of a nonprofit with expertise in designing lending and banking services, appointed by the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(10) A municipal employee whose official duties involve local economic development, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

(11) The Director of the Gund Institute for Ecological Economics or designee.

(12) An academic economist appointed jointly by the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(13) The president of the Vermont Student Assistance Corporation or designee.

(14) The executive director of the Vermont Housing Finance Agency or designee.

(c) Powers and duties.

(1) The Task Force shall study ways to increase efficiency and reduce costs in government financial operations, including:

(A) The number, nature, and scope of lending, loan servicing, investing, grant-making, and related operations performed by the State and its instrumentalities.

(B) The costs and benefits of contracting out banking services, including fees, transaction costs, debt service, lost profit opportunities, opportunities to increase local investing, and administrative savings.

(C) The costs and benefits of consolidating Vermont tax receipts, fees, or other revenues, including impacts on debt service, and on access to capital for Vermont economic development activities, education lending, and other lending activities:

(i) into one or more Vermont-based private banking institutions; or

(ii) into an existing or new public institution.

(D) How a new public institution can work in partnership with Vermont financial institutions:

(i) to increase access to capital for Vermont citizens and businesses; and

(ii) to provide lower cost capital to municipalities to meet infrastructure needs and other expenditures.

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Task Force shall have administrative, policy, and legal support from the legislative Joint Fiscal Office and the Office of Legislative Council.

(d) Report. On or before January 15, 2014, the Task Force shall report to the House and Senate Committees on Government Operations its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(e) Reimbursement. For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General Assembly, legislative members of the Task Force shall be entitled to compensation and reimbursement for expenses as provided in 2 V.S.A. § 406; and other members of the Task Force who are not employees of the State of Vermont shall be reimbursed at the per diem rate set in 32 V.S.A. § 1010(b) plus mileage reimbursement.

(f) Appropriation. The sum of \$5,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund in fiscal year 2014 to the Department of Finance and Management for per diem and expenses of the State Financial and Lending Efficiency Task Force under this section.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

Reported favorably by Senator Hartwell for the Committee on Finance when amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 6-0-1)

Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Starr for the Committee on Appropriations.

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Government Operations, with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 1, by striking out subsections (e)–(f) in their entirety.

Second: By striking out Sec. 2 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 2 to read:

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE; REPEAL

This act shall take effect on passage and shall be repealed on January 16, 2014.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

AMENDMENT TO S. 55 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR ASHE

Senator Ashe moves that the recommendation of amendment of the Committee on Government Operations, be amended as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, by striking out subsection (b) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (b) to read:

(b) Membership. The Task Force shall be composed of the following members:

(1) The Vermont State Treasurer, who shall serve as chair.

(2) The Secretary of Commerce and Community Development or designee.

(3) The President of the Vermont Community Foundation or designee.

(4) A business entrepreneur with relevant financial services experience, appointed by the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(5) A current officer or executive of a Vermont-based banking institution, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

(6) The Executive Director of the Vermont Economic Development Authority or designee.

(7) The executive director of a nonprofit with expertise in designing lending and banking services, appointed by the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(8) A municipal employee whose official duties involve local economic development, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

(9) The Director of the Gund Institute for Ecological Economics or designee.

(10) An academic economist appointed jointly by the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the Senate President Pro Tempore.

(11) The president of the Vermont Student Assistance Corporation or designee.

(12) The executive director of the Vermont Housing Finance Agency or designee.

(13) The executive director of the Vermont Municipal Bond Bank.

(14) A director of a regional economic development corporation appointed by the Senate Committee on Committees.

Second: In Sec. 1, subdivision (c) subsection (1) by adding new subdivisions (E)–(G) to read:

(E) State revenues and cash flow and liquidity requirements of the State and relevant entities or instrumentalities and the potential liquidity impact of potential structural models considered by the Task Force.

(F) Required capital appropriations, if any, or other sources of capital required under potential structural models for start-up and ongoing operations.

(G) Legal issues, constitutional or statutory, compliance with federal and state laws and regulations, and regulatory capital requirements, including:

(i) Requirements of monies paid to the treasury.

(ii) Loans of state money for private purposes.

(iii) Duties of the State Treasurer, Commissioner of Finance and Management, and other relevant state authorities.

(iv) State investment statutes.

(v) Issues arising from use and operation of special funds.

(vi) Regulatory issues for financial institutions under the authority of the Department of Financial Regulation.

Third: In Sec. 1, subsection (c) by striking out subdivision (2) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (2) to read as follows:

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Task Force shall have administrative support from the Office of the Treasurer.

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 99.

An act relating to equal pay.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Mullin for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 2, 21 V.S.A. § 495, by striking out subdivision (a)(7)(B) and inserting a new subdivision (a)(7)(B) to read:

(B)(i) No employer may do any of the following:

~~(i)(I)~~ Require, as a condition of employment, that an employee refrain from disclosing the amount of his or her wages or from inquiring about or discussing the wages of other employees.

~~(ii)(II)~~ Require an employee to sign a waiver or other document that purports to deny the employee the right to disclose the amount of his or her wages or to inquire about or discuss the wages of other employees.

~~(iii)~~ Discharge, formally discipline, or otherwise discriminate against an employee who discloses the amount of his or her wages.

(ii) Unless otherwise required by law, an employer may prohibit a human resources manager from disclosing the wages of other employees.

Second: In Sec. 2, 21 V.S.A. § 495, in subsection (h), by adding a sentence at the end of the subsection to read: “Unless otherwise required by law, nothing in this section shall require an employee to disclose his or her wages in response to an inquiry by another employee.

Third: In Sec. 3, 3 V.S.A. § 345, by striking out subsection (b) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (b) to read:

(b) A contractor subject to this section shall maintain and make available its books and records at reasonable times and upon notice to the contracting agency and the Attorney General so that either may determine whether the contractor is in compliance with this section.

Fourth: By striking out Sec. 6 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 6 to read:

Sec. 6. 21 V.S.A. § 309 is added to read:

§ 309. FLEXIBLE WORKING ARRANGEMENTS

(a)(1) An employee may request a flexible working arrangement that meets the needs of the employer and employee. The employer shall consider a request using the procedures in subsections (b) and (c) of this section at least twice per calendar year.

(2) As used in this section, “flexible working arrangement” means intermediate or long-term changes in the employee’s regular working arrangements including changes in the number of days or hours worked, changes in the time the employee arrives at or departs from work, work from home, or job-sharing. “Flexible working arrangement” does not include vacation, routine scheduling of shifts, or another form of employee leave.

(b)(1) The employer shall discuss the request for a flexible working arrangement with the employee in good faith. The employer and employee may propose alternative arrangements during the discussion.

(2) The employer shall consider the employee’s request for a flexible working arrangement and whether the request could be granted in a manner that is not inconsistent with its business operations or its legal or contractual obligations.

(3) As used in this section, “inconsistent with business operations” includes:

(A) the burden on an employer of additional costs;

(B) a detrimental effect on aggregate employee morale unrelated to discrimination or other unlawful employment practices;

(C) a detrimental effect on the ability of an employer to meet consumer demand;

(D) an inability to reorganize work among existing staff;

(E) an inability to recruit additional staff;

(F) a detrimental impact on business quality or business performance;

(G) an insufficiency of work during the periods the employee proposes to work; and

(H) planned structural changes to the business.

(c) The employer shall notify the employee of the decision regarding the request. If the request was submitted in writing, the employer shall state any complete or partial denial of the request in writing.

(d) This section shall not diminish any rights under this chapter or pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement. An employer may institute a flexible working arrangement policy that is more generous than is provided by this section.

(e) The Attorney General, a state's attorney, or the Human Rights Commission in the case of state employees may enforce subsections (b) and (c) of this section by restraining prohibited acts, conducting civil investigations, and obtaining assurances of discontinuance in accordance with the procedures established in subsection 495b(a) of this title. An employer subject to a complaint shall have the rights and remedies specified in subsection 495b(a) of this title. An investigation against an employer shall not be a prerequisite for bringing an action. The Civil Division of the Superior Court may award injunctive relief and court costs in any action. There shall be no private right of action to enforce this section.

(f) An employer shall not retaliate against an employee exercising his or her rights under this section. The provisions against retaliation in subdivision 495(a)(8) of this title and the penalty and enforcement provisions of section 495b of this title shall apply to this section.

(g) Nothing in this section shall affect any legal rights an employer or employee may have under applicable law to create, terminate, or modify a flexible working arrangement.

Fifth: By striking out Sec. 13 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 13 to read:

Sec. 13. PAID FAMILY LEAVE STUDY COMMITTEE

(a) Creation. There is created a Committee to study the issue of paid family leave in Vermont and to make recommendations regarding whether and how paid family leave may benefit Vermont citizens.

(b) Membership. The Committee shall consist of the following members:

(1) two members of the House of Representatives, who shall not be of the same party, chosen by the Speaker;

(2) two members of the Senate, who shall not be of the same party, chosen by the Committee on Committees;

(3) three representatives from the business community, one appointed by the Speaker and two by the Committee on Committees;

(4) two representatives from labor organizations, one appointed by the Speaker and one by the Committee on Committees;

(5) one representative appointed by the Governor;

(6) the Attorney General or designee;

(7) the Commissioner of Labor or designee;

(8) the Executive Director of the Vermont Commission on Women or designee; and

(9) the Executive Director of the Human Rights Commission or designee.

(c) Duties. The Committee shall examine:

(1) existing paid leave laws and proposed paid leave legislation in other states;

(2) which employees should be eligible for paid leave benefits;

(3) the appropriate level of wage replacement for eligible employees;

(4) the appropriate duration of paid leave benefits;

(5) mechanisms for funding paid leave through employee contributions;

(6) administration of paid leave benefits;

(7) transitioning to a funded paid leave program; and

(8) any other issues relevant to paid leave.

(d) The Committee shall make recommendations including proposed legislation to address paid family leave in Vermont.

(e) The Committee shall convene its first meeting on or before September 1, 2013. The Commissioner of Labor or designee shall be designated Chair of the Committee and shall convene the first and subsequent meetings. The Committee shall have the administrative assistance of the Department of Labor.

(f) The Committee shall report its findings and recommendations on or before January 15, 2014 to the House Committee on General, Housing and Military Affairs and the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs.

(g) For participation on the Committee at meetings during the adjournment of the General Assembly, legislative members shall be entitled to per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 406.

(h) Other members of the Committee who are not employees of the State of Vermont and who are not otherwise compensated or reimbursed for their participation shall be entitled to per diem compensation or reimbursement of expenses, or both, pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 1010.

(i) The Committee shall cease to function upon transmitting its report.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 19, 2013, page 406.)

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Fox for the Committee on Appropriations.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as recommended by the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs with the following amendments thereto:

First: In Sec. 13 (Study Committee), subsection (b), by striking out subdivisions (1) and (2) in their entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

(1) One member of the House of Representatives chosen by the Speaker;

(2) One member of the Senate chosen by the Committee on Committees;

Second: In Sec. 13 (Study Committee), at the end of subsection (e) by adding the following: The Committee shall meet not more than five (5) times.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

H. 178.

An act relating to anatomical gifts.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Ayer for the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 2, 18 V.S.A. § 5227, by inserting a new subsection (c) to read as follows:

(c) If the disposition of the remains of a decedent is determined under subdivision (a)(9) of this section and the funeral director or crematory operator has cremated the remains, the funeral director or crematory operator shall retain the remains for three years, and, if no interested party as provided in subdivisions (a)(1) through (8) of this section claims the decedent's remains after three years, the funeral director or crematory operator shall arrange for

the final disposition of the cremated remains consistent with any applicable law and standard funeral practices.

and by relettering the existing subsection (c) to be (d).

Second: In Sec. 4, subsection (b), at the end of subdivision (4), by striking out the word “and” and by inserting new subdivisions (5) and (6) to read:

(5) a licensed funeral director or crematory operator;

(6) a family member of a decedent who made an anatomical gift under 18 V.S.A. chapter 110; and

and by renumbering the existing subdivision (5) to be (7)

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for March 20, 2013, page 423.)

Reported favorably by Senator Fox for the Committee on Appropriations when amended as recommended by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

Report of Committee of Conference

H. 131.

An act relating to harvesting guidelines and procurement standards.

To the Senate and House of Representatives:

The Committee of Conference to which were referred the disagreeing votes of the two Houses upon House Bill entitled:

H. 131. An act relating to harvesting guidelines and procurement standards.

Respectfully reports that it has met and recommends that the House accede to the Senate proposal of amendment and that the bill be further amended in Sec. 4, 30 V.S.A. § 248(b)(11), by striking out subdivisions (B) and (C) in their entirety and inserting in lieu thereof new subdivisions (B) and (C) to read:

(B) ~~incorporate commercially available and feasible designs to achieve a reasonable~~ the highest design system efficiency that is commercially available, feasible, and cost-effective for the type and design of the proposed facility; and

(C) comply with harvesting ~~guidelines~~ procedures and procurement standards that ~~are consistent~~ ensure long-term forest health and sustainability. These procedures and standards at a minimum shall be consistent with the

guidelines and standards developed ~~by the secretary of natural resources~~ pursuant to 10 V.S.A. § 2750 (harvesting guidelines and procurement standards) when adopted under that statute.

*ROBERT M. HARTWELL
JOHN S. RODGERS
DIANE B. SNELLING*

Committee on the part of the Senate

*JOHN W. MALCOLM
ANTHONY W. KLEIN
WILLIAM P. CANFIELD*

Committee on the part of the House

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 474.

An act relating to amending the membership and charge of the Government Accountability Committee.

H. 525.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the Town of Stowe.

H. 529.

An act relating to approval of an amendment to the charter of the Winooski Incorporated School District related to the term of district treasurer.

NOTICE CALENDAR

Second Reading

Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

S. 37.

An act relating to the creation of a tax increment financing district.

Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Ashe for the Committee on Finance.

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. RESOLUTION OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT
AUDIT REPORT ISSUES

In 2011 and 2012, the State Auditor of Accounts performed and reported on required reviews and audits of all active tax increment financing districts. However, the tax increment financing laws currently lack a specific remedy to recover amounts identified in the Auditor's Reports or an enforcement mechanism to address issues identified in the Reports. The General Assembly seeks to address issues identified in the 2011 and 2012 Auditor's Reports by clarifying tax increment financing laws and specifying a process for future oversight and enforcement. Accordingly, it is the intent of the General Assembly not to consider amounts identified as underpayments to the Education Fund by the 2011 and 2012 Auditor's Reports as owed to the State unless and until the amounts are identified as owed to the State through rulemaking, as described in Sec. 14 of this act. If the rule identifies amounts as owed to the State, these amounts shall begin to accumulate upon the adoption date of the rule.

Sec. 2. 24 V.S.A. § 1891 is amended to read:

§ 1891. DEFINITIONS

When used in this subchapter:

* * *

(4) "Improvements" means the installation, new construction, or reconstruction of ~~streets, utilities, and other infrastructure needed for transportation, telecommunications, wastewater treatment, and water supply, parks, playgrounds, land acquisition, parking facilities, brownfield remediation, and other public improvements necessary for carrying out the objectives of this chapter~~ infrastructure that will serve a public purpose and fulfill the purpose of tax increment financing districts as stated in section 1893 of this subchapter, including utilities, transportation, public facilities and amenities, land and property acquisition and demolition, and site preparation.

(5) "Original taxable ~~property~~ value" means the total valuation as determined in accordance with 32 V.S.A. chapter 129 of all taxable real property located within the tax increment financing district on the day the district was created under ~~as of the creation date as set forth in section 1892 of this subchapter, provided that no parcel within the district shall be divided or bisected by the district boundary.~~

(6) "Related costs" means expenses incurred and paid by the municipality, exclusive of the actual cost of constructing and financing improvements, that are directly related to the creation and implementation of

the tax increment financing district ~~and, including~~ reimbursement of sums previously advanced by the municipality for those purposes, ~~and attaining the purposes and goals for which the tax increment financing district was created, as approved by the Vermont economic progress council.~~ Related costs may include direct municipal expenses such as departmental or personnel costs related to creating or administering the district to the extent they are paid from the tax increment realized from municipal and not education taxes and using only that portion of the municipal increment above the required percentage in servicing the debt as determined in accordance with subsection 1894(f) of this subchapter.

(7) “Financing” means ~~the following types of~~ debt incurred, including principal, interest, and any fees or charges directly related to that debt, or other instruments or borrowing used by a municipality to pay for improvements in a tax increment financing district;

~~(A) Bonds.~~

~~(B) Housing and Urban Development Section 108 financing instruments.~~

~~(C) Interfund loans within a municipality.~~

~~(D) State of Vermont revolving loan funds.~~

~~(E) United States Department of Agriculture loans~~

only if authorized by the legal voters of the municipality in accordance with section 1894 of this subchapter. Payment for the cost of district improvements may also include direct payment by the municipality using the district increment. However, such payment is also subject to a vote by the legal voters of the municipality in accordance with section 1894 of this subchapter and, if not included in the tax increment financing plan approved under subsection 1894(d) of this subchapter, is also considered a substantial change and subject to the review process provided by subdivision 1901(3) of this subchapter. If interfund loans within the municipality are used as the method of financing, no interest shall be charged.

(8) “Committed” means pledged and appropriated for the purpose of the current and future payment of tax increment financing incurred in accordance with section 1894 of this subchapter and related costs as defined in this section.

Sec. 3. 24 V.S.A. § 1892 is amended to read:

§ 1892. CREATION OF DISTRICT

(a) Upon a finding that such action will serve the public purposes of this subchapter and subject to subsection (d) of this section, the legislative body of

any municipality may create within its jurisdiction, ~~a special district or districts~~ to be known as a tax increment financing district. ~~They shall describe the~~ The district shall be described by its boundaries and the properties therein and ~~shall show~~ the district boundary shall be shown on a plan entitled "Proposed Tax Increment Financing District (municipal name), Vermont." The legislative body shall hold one or more public hearings, after public notice, on the proposed plan.

(b) When adopted by the act of the legislative body of that municipality, the plan shall be recorded with the municipal clerk and lister or assessor, and the creation of the district shall occur at 12:01 a.m. on April 1 of the calendar year so voted by the municipal legislative body.

(c) A municipality that has approved the creation of a district under this section may designate a coordinating agency from outside the municipality's departments or offices to administer the district to ensure compliance with this subchapter and any statutory or other requirements and may claim this expense as a related cost. However, the coordinating agency shall not be authorized to enter into any agreement or make any covenant on behalf of the municipality.

(d) The following municipalities have been authorized to use education tax increment financing for a tax increment financing district, and the Vermont Economic Progress Council is not authorized to approve any additional tax increment financing districts even if one of the districts named in this subsection is terminated pursuant to subsection 1894(a) of this subchapter:

- (1) the City of Burlington, Downtown;
- (2) the City of Burlington, Waterfront;
- (3) the Town of Milton, North and South;
- (4) the City of Newport;
- (5) the City of Winooski;
- (6) the Town of Colchester;
- (7) the Town of Hartford;
- (8) the City of St. Albans; and
- (9) the City of Barre.

Sec. 4. 24 V.S.A. § 1894 is amended to read:

§ 1894. POWER AND LIFE OF DISTRICT

- (a) Incurring indebtedness.

~~(1) A municipality may incur indebtedness against revenues of the tax increment financing district at any time during a period of up to 20 years following the creation of the district, if approved as required under 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h). The creation of the district shall occur at 12:01 a.m. on April 1 of the year so voted. Any indebtedness incurred during this 20 year period may be retired over any period authorized by the legislative body of the municipality under section 1898 of this title.~~

~~(2) If no indebtedness is incurred within the first five years after creation of the district, no indebtedness may be incurred unless the municipality obtains reapproval from the Vermont economic progress council under 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h). When considering reapproval, the Vermont economic progress council shall consider only material changes in the application under 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h). The Vermont economic progress council shall presume that an applicant qualifies for reapproval upon a showing that the inability of the district to incur indebtedness was the result of the macro economic conditions in the first five years after the creation of the district. Upon reapproval, the Vermont economic progress council shall grant a five year extension of the period to incur indebtedness.~~

~~(3) The district shall continue until the date and hour the indebtedness is retired.~~

(1) A municipality approved under 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h) may incur indebtedness against revenues of the tax increment financing district at any time during a period of up to ten years following the creation of the district. If no debt is incurred during this ten-year period, the district shall terminate.

(2) Any indebtedness incurred under subdivision (1) of this subsection may be retired over any period authorized by the legislative body of the municipality.

(3) If no indebtedness is incurred within the first ten years after the creation of the district, no indebtedness may be incurred against revenues of the tax increment financing district.

(4) The district shall continue until the date and hour the indebtedness is retired or, if no debt is incurred, ten years following the creation of the district.

(b) Use of the education property tax increment. For any only debt and related costs incurred within the first five ten years after creation of the district, or within the first five years after reapproval by the Vermont economic progress council, but for no other debt, up to 75 percent of the education tax increment may be retained for up to 20 years, beginning with the initial date of the first debt incurred within the first five years education tax increment generated the year in which the first debt incurred for improvements financed

in whole or in part with incremental education property tax revenue. Upon incurring the first debt, a municipality shall notify the Department of Taxes and the Vermont Economic Progress Council of the beginning of the 20-year retention period of education tax increment.

(c) ~~Prior to requesting municipal approval to secure financing, the municipality shall provide the council with all information related to the proposed financing necessary for approval and to assure its consistency with the plan approved pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h). The council shall also assure the viability and reasonableness of any proposed financing other than bonding and least cost financing~~ Use of the municipal property tax increment. For only debt and related costs incurred within the first ten years after creation of the district, not less than an equal share of the municipal tax increment pursuant to subsection (f) of this section shall be retained to service the debt, beginning the first year in which debt is incurred, pursuant to subsection (b) of this section.

(d) Approval of tax increment financing plan. The Vermont Economic Progress Council shall approve a municipality's tax increment financing plan prior to a public vote to pledge the credit of that municipality under subsection (h) of this section. The tax increment financing plan shall include all information related to the proposed financing necessary for approval by the Council and to assure its viability and consistency with the tax increment financing district plan approved by the Council pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h). The tax increment financing plan may be submitted to and approved by the Council concurrently with the tax increment financing district plan.

(e) Proportionality. The municipal legislative body may pledge and appropriate the state education and municipal tax increments received from properties contained within the tax increment financing district for the financing of improvements and for related costs only in the same proportion by which the improvement or related costs serve the district, as determined by the Council when approved in accordance with 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h), and in the case of an improvement that does not reasonably lend itself to a proportionality formula, the Council shall apply a rough proportionality and rational nexus test.

(f) Equal share required. If any tax increment utilization is approved pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(h), no more than 75 percent of the state property tax increment and no less than an equal percent of the municipal tax increment may be approved by the Council or used by the municipality to service this debt.

(g) Adjustment of percentage. During the tenth year following the creation of the tax increment financing district, the municipality shall submit an updated tax increment financing plan to the Council which shall include adjustments and updates of appropriate data and information sufficient for the Council to determine, based on tax increment financing debt actually incurred and the history of increment generated during the first ten years, whether the percentages approved under subsection (f) of this section should be continued or adjusted to a lower percentage to be retained for the remaining duration of the retention period and still provide sufficient municipal and education increment to service the remaining debt.

(h) Vote required on each instance of debt. Notwithstanding any provision of any municipal charter, each instance of borrowing to finance or otherwise pay for tax increment financing district improvements shall occur only after the legal voters of the municipality, by a majority vote of all voters present and voting on the question at a special or annual municipal meeting duly warned for the purpose, authorize the legislative body to pledge the credit of the municipality, borrow, or otherwise secure the debt for the specific purposes so warned; provided that each request to pledge the credit of the municipality for the purposes of financing tax increment financing district improvements shall include the new amount of debt proposed to be incurred and the total outstanding tax increment financing debt approved to date.

(i) Notice to voters. A municipal legislative body shall provide information to the public prior to the public vote required under subsection (h) of this section. This information shall include the amount and types of debt and related costs to be incurred, including principal, interest, and fees, terms of the debt, the improvements to be financed, the expected development to occur because of the improvements, and notice to the voters that if the tax increment received by the municipality from any property tax source is insufficient to pay the principal and interest on the debt in any year, for whatever reason, including a decrease in property value or repeal of a state property tax source, unless determined otherwise at the time of such repeal, the municipality shall remain liable for the full payment of the principal and interest for the term of indebtedness. If interfund loans within the municipality are used, the information must also include documentation of the terms and conditions of such loan. If interfund loans within the municipality are used as the method of financing, no interest shall be charged.

Sec. 5. 24 V.S.A. § 1895 is amended to read:

§ 1895. ORIGINAL TAXABLE VALUE

On or about 12:01 a.m., April 1, of the first year As of the date the district is created, the lister or assessor for the municipality shall certify the assessed

~~valuation of all taxable real property within the district as then most recently determined, which is referred to in this subchapter as the “original taxable value,”~~ original taxable value and shall certify to the legislative body in each year thereafter during the life of the district the amount by which the original taxable value has increased or decreased, and the proportion which any such increase bears to the total assessed valuation of the real property for that year or the proportion which any such decrease bears to the original taxable value.

Sec. 6. 24 V.S.A. § 1896 is amended to read:

§ 1896. TAX INCREMENTS

(a) In each ~~subsequent~~ year following the creation of the district, the listers or assessor shall include no more than the original taxable value of the real property in the assessed valuation upon which the listers or assessor computes the rates of all taxes levied by the municipality, the school district, and every other taxing district in which the tax increment financing district is situated; but the listers or assessor shall extend all rates so determined against the entire assessed valuation of real property for that year. In each year for which the assessed valuation exceeds the original taxable value, the municipality ~~treasurer~~ shall hold apart, rather than remit to the taxing districts, that proportion of all taxes paid that year on the real property in the district which the excess valuation bears to the total assessed valuation. The amount held apart each year is the “tax increment” for that year. ~~So much~~ No more than the percentages established pursuant to section 1894 of this subchapter of the municipal and state education tax increments received with respect to the district and pledged committed for the payment for financing for improvements and related costs shall be segregated by the municipality in a special tax increment financing account ~~on~~ and in its official books and records until all capital indebtedness of the district has been fully paid. The final payment shall be reported to the lister or assessor, who shall thereafter include the entire assessed valuation of the district in the assessed valuations upon which tax rates are computed and extended and taxes are remitted to all taxing districts.

(b) ~~Adjustment upon reappraisal. In the event of a reappraisal of 20 percent or more of all parcels in the municipality, the value of the original taxable property in the district shall be changed by a multiplier, the denominator of which is the municipality’s education property grand list for the property within the district in the year prior to the reappraisal or partial reappraisal and the numerator of which shall be the municipality’s reappraised or partially reappraised education property grand list for the property within the district. The state education property tax revenues for the district in the first year following a townwide reappraisal or partial town wide reappraisal~~

~~shall not be less than the dollar amount of the state education property tax revenues in the prior year. [Repealed.]~~

(c) Notwithstanding any charter provision or other provision, all property taxes assessed within a district shall be subject to the provision of subsection (a) of this section.

(d) Amounts held apart under subsection (a) of this section shall only be used for financing and related costs as defined in section 1891 of this subchapter.

Sec. 7. REPEAL

24 V.S.A. § 1897 (tax increment financing) is repealed.

Sec. 8. 24 V.S.A. § 1898 is amended to read:

§ 1898. POWERS SUPPLEMENTAL; CONSTRUCTION

(a) The powers conferred by this subchapter are supplemental and alternative to other powers conferred by law, and this subchapter is intended as an independent and comprehensive conferral of powers to accomplish the purposes set forth herein.

(b) A municipality shall have power to issue from time to time general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, or revenue bonds also backed by the municipality's full faith and credit in its discretion to finance the undertaking of any improvements wholly or partly within such district. If revenue bonds are issued, such bonds shall be made payable, as to both principal and interest, solely from the income proceeds, revenues, tax increments, and funds of the municipality derived from, or held in connection with its undertaking and carrying out of improvements under this chapter. ~~So long as any such bonds of a municipality are outstanding the local governing body may deduct, in any one or more years from any net increase in the aggregate taxable valuation of land and improvements in all areas covered by their district the amount necessary to produce tax revenues equal to the current debt service on such bonds, assuming the previous year's total tax rate and full collection. Only the balance, if any, of such net increase shall be taken into account in computing the sums which may be appropriated for other purposes under applicable tax rate limits. But all the taxable property in all areas covered by the district, including the whole of such net increase, shall be subject to the same total tax rate as other taxable property, except as may be otherwise provided by law. Such net increase shall be computed each year by subtracting, from the current aggregate valuation of the land and improvements in all areas covered by the district, the sum of the aggregate valuations of land and improvements in each such area on the date the district was approved under this section. An area~~

~~shall be deemed to be covered as a district until the date all the indebtedness incurred by the municipality to finance the applicable improvements have been paid. Notwithstanding any provisions in this chapter to the contrary, any provision of a municipal charter of any municipality which specifies a different debt limit, or which requires a greater vote to authorize bonds, or which prescribes a different computation of appropriations under tax rate limits, or which is otherwise inconsistent with this subsection, shall apply.~~

(c) Bonds issued under the provisions of this chapter are declared to be issued for an essential public and governmental purpose.

(d) Bonds issued under this section shall be authorized by resolution or ordinance of the local governing body and may be payable upon demand or mature at such time or times, bear interest at such rate or rates, be in such denomination or denominations, be in registered form, carry such conversion or registration privileges, have such rank or priority, be executed in such manner, be payable in such medium or payment, at such place or places, and be subject to such terms of redemption, such other characteristics, as may be provided by such resolution or trust indenture or mortgage issued pursuant thereto.

~~(e) Prior to the resolution or ordinance of the local governing body authorizing financing under this section, the legislative body of the municipality shall hold one or more public hearings, after public notice, on a financial plan for the proposed improvements and related costs to be funded, including a statement of costs and sources of revenue, the estimates of assessed values within the district, the portion of those assessed values to be applied to the proposed improvements, the resulting tax increments in each year of the financial plan, the amount of bonded indebtedness or other financing to be incurred, other sources of financing and anticipated revenues, and the duration of the financial plan. A municipality that has approved the creation of a district under this chapter may designate a coordinating agency to administer the district to ensure compliance with this chapter and any other statutory or other requirements. [Repealed.]~~

(f) Such bonds may be sold at not less than par at public or private sales held after notice published prior to such sale in a newspaper having a general circulation ~~in the area of operation and in such other medium of publication as the municipality may determine or may be on the basis of par in the~~ municipality.

(g) In case any of the public officials of the municipality whose signatures appear on any bonds or coupons issued under this chapter shall cease to be such officials before the delivery of such bonds, such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such

officials had remained in office until such delivery. Any provisions of any law to the contrary notwithstanding, any bonds issued pursuant to this chapter shall be fully negotiable.

(h) In any suit, action, or proceeding involving the validity or enforceability of any bond issued under this chapter or the security therefor, any such bond reciting in substance that it has been issued by the municipality in connection with an improvement, as herein defined, shall be conclusively deemed to have been issued for such purpose and such improvement shall be conclusively deemed to have been planned, located, and carried out in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.

(i) [Repealed.]

Sec. 9. 24 V.S.A. § 1900 is amended to read:

§ 1900. DISTRIBUTION

In addition to all other provisions of this ~~chapter~~ subchapter, with respect to any tax increment financing district, of the municipal and education tax increments received in any tax year that exceed the amounts ~~pledged~~ committed for the payment of the financing for improvements and related costs in the district, ~~an equal portion~~ portions of each increment may be ~~used for~~ retained for the following purposes: prepayment of principal and interest on the financing, ~~placed in escrow~~ placed in a special account required by section 1896 of this subchapter and used for future financing payment payments, or ~~otherwise~~ used for defeasance of the financing; ~~and any.~~ Any remaining portion of the excess municipal tax increment shall be distributed to the city, town, or village budget, in proportion that each budget bears to the combined total of the budgets unless otherwise negotiated by the city, town, or village; and any remaining portion of the excess education tax increment shall be distributed to the ~~education fund~~ Education Fund.

Sec. 10. 24 V.S.A. § 1901 is amended to read:

§ 1901. INFORMATION REPORTING

Every municipality with an active tax increment financing district shall:

(1) ~~On or before December 1 of each year, report to the Vermont economic progress council (VEPC) and the tax department all information described in 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(i), in the form prescribed by VEPC.~~

(2) ~~Report its tax increment financing actual investment, bond or other financing repayments, escrow status, and "related cost" accounting to the Vermont economic progress council according to the municipal audit cycle prescribed in section 1681 of this title. Develop a system, segregated for the tax increment financing district, to identify, collect, and maintain all data and~~

information necessary to fulfill the reporting requirements of this section, including performance indicators.

(2) Throughout the year, as required by events:

(A) provide notification to the Vermont Economic Progress Council and the Department of Taxes regarding any tax increment financing debt obligations, public votes, or votes by the municipal legislative body immediately following such obligation or vote on a form prescribed by the Council, including copies of public notices, agendas, minutes, vote tally, and a copy of the information provided to the public in accordance with subsection 1894(i) of this subchapter;

(B) submit any proposed substantial changes to be made to the approved tax increment district plan and approved financing plan to the Council for review, only after receiving approval for the substantial change through a vote of the municipal legislative body;

(3) Annually:

(A) include in the municipal audit cycle prescribed in section 1681 of this title a report of finances of the tax increment financing district, including the original taxable value and annual and total municipal and education tax increments generated, annual and total expenditures on improvements and related costs, all indebtedness of the district, including the initial debt, interest rate, terms, and annual and total principal and interest payments, an accounting of revenue sources other than property tax revenue by type and dollar amount, and an accounting of the special account required by section 1896 of this subchapter, including revenue, expenditures for debt and related costs, and current balance;

(B) on or before January 15 of each year, on a form prescribed by the Council, submit an annual report to the Vermont Economic Progress Council and the Department of Taxes, including the information required by subdivision (2) of this section if not already submitted during the year, all information required by subdivision (A) of this subdivision (3), and the information required by 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(i), including performance indicators and any other information required by the Council or the Department of Taxes.

Sec. 11. 32 V.S.A. § 5401 is amended to read:

§ 5401. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

* * *

(10) “Nonresidential property” means all property except:

* * *

(E) The excess valuation of property subject to tax increment financing in a tax increment financing district established under 24 V.S.A. chapter 53, subchapter 5 to the extent that the taxes generated on ~~the excess property valuation are pledged and appropriated for interest and principal repayment on bonded debt or prefunding future~~ such excess valuation of property are committed under 24 V.S.A. § 1894 to finance tax increment financing district debt and to the extent approved for this purpose by the Vermont economic progress council upon application by the district under procedures established for approval of tax stabilization agreements under section 5404a of this title, and that any such action shall be included in the annual authorization limits provided in subdivision 5930a(d)(1) of this title; provided that any increment in excess of the amounts committed shall be distributed in accordance with 24 V.S.A. § 1900.

* * *

Sec. 12. 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(g) is amended to read:

(g) Any ~~utilization use~~ use of education property tax increment approved under subsection (f) of this section shall be in addition to any other payments to the municipality under 16 V.S.A. chapter 133. Tax increment utilizations approved pursuant to subsection (f) of this section shall affect the education property tax grand list and the municipal grand list of the municipality under this chapter beginning April 1 of the year following approval and shall remain available to the municipality for the full period authorized under 24 V.S.A. § 1894; and shall be restricted only to the extent that the real property development giving rise to the increased value to the grand list fails to occur within the authorized period or by the enforcement provided by subsection (j) of this section.

Sec. 13. 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(i) is amended to read:

(i) The Vermont ~~economic progress council~~ Economic Progress Council and the ~~department of taxes~~ Department of Taxes shall make an annual report to the ~~senate committee on economic development, housing and general affairs, the senate committee on finance, the house committee on commerce and the house committee on ways~~ Senate Committees on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs and on Finance and the House Committees on Commerce and Economic Development and on Ways and Means of the ~~general assembly~~ General Assembly on or before ~~January 15~~ April 1. The report shall include, in regard to each existing tax increment financing district, the ~~year of approval, the scope of the planned improvements and development, the equalized education grand list value of the district prior~~

~~to the TIF approval, the original taxable property, the tax increment, and the annual amount of tax increments utilized~~ date of creation, a profile of the district, a map of the district, the original taxable value, the scope and value of projected and actual improvements and developments, projected and actual incremental revenue amounts and division of the increment revenue between district debt, the Education Fund, the special account required by 24 V.S.A. § 1896 and the municipal general fund, projected and actual financing, and a set of performance indicators developed by the Vermont Economic Progress Council, which shall include the number of jobs created in the district, what sectors experienced job growth, and the amount of infrastructure work performed by Vermont firms.

Sec. 14. 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(j) is amended to read:

~~(j) The municipality shall provide the council with all information related to the proposed financing necessary to assure its consistency with the plan approved pursuant to all other provisions of subsection (h) of this section. The council shall assure the viability and reasonableness of any proposed financing other than bonding and least cost financing~~ Tax increment financing district rulemaking, oversight, and enforcement.

(1) Authority to adopt rules. The Vermont Economic Progress Council is hereby granted authority to adopt rules in accordance with 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 for the purpose of providing clarification and detail for administering the provisions of 24 V.S.A. chapter 53, subchapter 5 and the tax increment financing district provisions of this section. A single rule shall be adopted for all tax increment financing districts that will provide further clarification for statutory construction and include a process whereby a municipality may distribute excess increment to the Education Fund as allowed under 24 V.S.A. § 1900. From the date the rules are adopted, the municipalities with districts in existence prior to 2006 are required to abide by the governing rule and any other provisions of the law in force; provided, however, that the rule shall indicate which specific provisions are not applicable to those districts in existence prior to January 2006.

(2) Authority to issue decisions.

(A) The Secretary of Commerce and Community Development, after reasonable notice to a municipality and an opportunity for a hearing, is authorized to issue decisions to a municipality regarding questions and inquiries about the administration of tax increment financing districts, statutes, rules, noncompliance with 24 V.S.A. chapter 53, subchapter 5, and any instances of noncompliance identified in audit reports conducted pursuant to subsection (1) of this section.

(B) The Vermont Economic Progress Council shall prepare recommendations for the Secretary prior to the issuance of a decision. As appropriate, the Council may prepare such recommendations in consultation with the Commissioner of Taxes, the Attorney General, and the State Treasurer. In preparing recommendations, the Council shall provide a municipality with a reasonable opportunity to submit written information in support of its position. The Secretary shall review the recommendations of the Council and issue a final decision on each matter within 60 days of the recommendation. However, pursuant to subdivision (5) of this subsection (j), the Secretary may permit an appeal to be taken by any party to a Superior Court for determination of questions of law in the same manner as the Supreme Court may by rule provide for appeals before final judgment from a Superior Court before issuing a final decision.

(3) Remedy for noncompliance. If the Secretary issues a decision under subdivision (2) of this subsection that includes a finding of noncompliance and that noncompliance has resulted in the improper reduction in the amount due the Education Fund, the Secretary, unless and until he or she is satisfied that there is no longer any such failure to comply, shall request that the State Treasurer bill the municipality for the total identified underpayment. The amount of the underpayment shall be due from the municipality upon receipt of the bill. If the municipality does not pay the underpayment amount within 60 days, the amount may be withheld from any funds otherwise payable by the State to the municipality or a school district in the municipality or of which the municipality is a member.

(4) In lieu of or in addition to any action authorized in subdivision (3) of this subsection, the Secretary of Commerce and Community Development or the State Treasurer may refer the matter to the Office of the Attorney General with a recommendation that an appropriate civil action be initiated.

(5) A municipality that is aggrieved by the final determination or decision of the Secretary of Commerce and Community Development may appeal to a Superior Court under Rule 74 of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure for a review on the record. However, the Secretary, before final determination or decision, may permit an appeal to be taken by any party to a Superior Court for determination of questions of law in the same manner as the Supreme Court may by rule provide for appeals before final judgment from a Superior Court. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure or the Vermont Rules of Appellate Procedure, neither the time for filing a notice of appeal nor the filing of a notice of appeal, as provided in this section, shall operate as a stay of enforcement of a determination or decision of the Secretary unless the Secretary or a superior court grants a stay.

Sec. 15. 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(k) is amended to read:

(k) The Vermont ~~economic incentive review board~~ Economic Progress Council may require a third-party financial and technical analysis as part of the application of a municipality applying for approval of a tax increment financing district pursuant to this section. The applicant municipality shall pay a fee to cover the actual cost of the analysis to be deposited in a special fund which shall be managed pursuant to subchapter 5 of chapter 7 of this title and be available to the ~~board~~ Council to pay the actual cost of the analysis.

Sec. 16. 32 V.S.A. § 5404a(l) is amended to read:

(l) The ~~state auditor of accounts~~ State Auditor of Accounts shall ~~review and conduct an audit~~ perform performance audits of all ~~active~~ tax increment financing districts ~~every four years and bill back to the municipality the charge for the audit. The amount paid by the municipality for the audit shall be considered a “related cost” as defined in 24 V.S.A. § 1891(6). Any audit conducted by the state auditor of accounts under this subsection shall include a validation of the portion of the tax increment retained by the municipality and the portion directed to the education fund according to a schedule, which will be arrived at in consultation with the Vermont Economic Progress Council. The cost of conducting each audit shall be considered a “related cost” as defined in 24 V.S.A. § 1891(6) and shall be billed back to the municipality. Audits conducted pursuant to this subsection shall include a review of a municipality’s adherence to relevant statutes and rules adopted by the Vermont Economic Progress Council pursuant to subsection (j) of this section, an assessment of record keeping related to revenues and expenditures, and a validation of the portion of the tax increment retained by the municipality and used for debt repayment and the portion directed to the Education Fund.~~

(1) For municipalities with a district created prior to January 1, 2006 and a debt repayment schedule that anticipates retention of education increment beyond fiscal year 2016, an audit shall be conducted when approximately three-quarters of the period for retention of education increment has elapsed, and at the end of that same period, an audit shall be conducted for the final one-quarter period for retention of education increment.

(2) For municipalities with a district created after January 1, 2006 and approved by the Vermont Economic Progress Council, an audit shall be conducted at the end of the 10-year period in which debt can be incurred and again approximately halfway through the 20-year period for retention of education increment; provided, however, that an audit shall occur no more than one time in a five-year period. A final audit will be conducted at the end of the period for retention of education increment.

Sec. 17. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT APPROVAL; CITY OF SOUTH BURLINGTON

Notwithstanding 24 V.S.A. § 1892(d) and any other provision of law, the Vermont Economic Progress Council is authorized to approve a tax increment financing district in the City of South Burlington if approval is granted by December 31, 2013.

Sec. 18. BURLINGTON WATERFRONT TIF

The authority of the City of Burlington to incur indebtedness for its waterfront tax increment financing district is hereby extended for five years beginning January 1, 2015. This extension does not extend any period that municipal or education tax increment may be retained.

Sec. 19. 3 V.S.A. § 816(a) is amended to read:

(a) Sections 809–813 of this title shall not apply to:

* * *

(4) Acts, decisions, findings, or determinations by the Vermont Economic Progress Council of the Agency of Commerce and Community Development or the Secretary of Commerce and Community Development or his or her, its, or their duly authorized agents as to any and all procedures or hearings before and by the Vermont Economic Progress Council, the Agency, or their designees arising out of or with respect to 24 V.S.A. chapter 53, subchapter 5 and 32 V.S.A. chapter 135.

Sec. 20. 2011 AND 2012 AUDITOR'S REPORTS; PAYMENT

The State Treasurer is authorized to bill an audited municipality in an amount not to exceed \$15,000.00 to offset costs associated with conducting the 2011 and 2012 audits of tax increment financing districts. A municipality shall remit payment to the Treasurer no more than 60 days after receiving the bill. The Treasurer shall distribute any amounts collected from a municipality to the State Auditor of Accounts.

Sec. 21. REPEAL

Pursuant to Sec. 17 of this act, the 2006 Acts and Resolves No. 184, Sec. 2i, as amended by 2008 Acts and Resolves No. 190, Sec. 67 (tax increment financing districts, cap), is repealed to clarify that the Vermont Economic Progress Council shall not approve any additional tax increment financing districts.

Sec. 22. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) Secs. 1, 6(b), 10, 13–21, and this section shall take effect on passage. Sec. 6(b) (repeal of adjustment upon reappraisal) shall be effective retroactive to July 2006.

(b) Secs. 2 through 9 (except Sec. 6(b)), 11, and 12 (clarification of ambiguous statutes) of this act shall apply to any tax increment retained for all taxes assessed on the April 1, 2013 grand list.

(c) Sec. 6(c) (creation of taxes for special purposes) shall take effect on July 1, 2013.

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: "An act relating to tax increment financing districts".

(Committee vote: 5-1-1)

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 515.

An act relating to miscellaneous agricultural subjects.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Starr for the Committee on Agriculture.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Livestock and Poultry Products * * *

Sec. 1. 6 V.S.A. § 3302 is amended to read:

§ 3302. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter, except as otherwise specified, the following terms shall have the meanings stated below:

* * *

(10) "Custom slaughterhouse" means a person who maintains a slaughtering establishment under this chapter for the purposes of slaughtering livestock or poultry for another person's exclusive use by him or her and members of his or her household and his or her nonpaying guests and employees ~~and who is not engaged in the business of buying or selling carcasses, parts of carcasses, meat or meat food products or any cattle, sheep, swine, goats, domestic rabbits, equines, or poultry, capable of use as human food.~~

* * *

(43) “Itinerant livestock slaughter” means slaughter, in accordance with the requirements of subsection 3311a(e) of this title, of livestock owned by a person for his or her exclusive use or for use by members of his or her household and his or her nonpaying guests and employees.

(44) “Itinerant poultry slaughter” means the slaughter of poultry:

(A) at a person’s home or farm in accordance with subsection 3312(b) of this title; or

(B) at a facility approved by the Secretary for the slaughtering of poultry.

(45) “Itinerant slaughterer” means a person, who for compensation or gain, engages in itinerant livestock slaughter or itinerant poultry slaughter.

Sec. 2. 6 V.S.A. § 3305 is amended to read:

§ 3305. ADDITIONAL POWERS OF THE SECRETARY

In order to accomplish the objectives stated in section 3303 of this title, the ~~secretary~~ Secretary may:

* * *

(18) sell or lease a mobile slaughtering unit, and may retain any proceeds therefrom in a ~~revolving~~ fund designated for the purpose of purchasing additional mobile slaughtering units ~~by the agency~~ or providing matching grants for capital investments to increase poultry slaughter or poultry processing capacity.

Sec. 3. 6 V.S.A. § 3306 is amended to read:

§ 3306. LICENSING

(a) No person ~~may~~ shall engage in intrastate commerce in the business of buying, selling, preparing, processing, packing, storing, transporting, or otherwise handling meat, meat food products, or poultry products, unless that person holds a valid license issued under this chapter. Categories of licensure shall include: commercial slaughterers, custom slaughterers, commercial processors, custom processors, wholesale distributors, retail vendors, meat and poultry product brokers, renderers, public ~~warehousemen~~ warehouse operators, animal food manufacturers, handlers of dead, dying, disabled, or diseased animals, and any other category which the ~~secretary~~ Secretary may by rule establish.

(b) The owner or operator of each plant or establishment of the kind specified in subsection (a) of this section shall apply in writing to the ~~secretary~~

Secretary on a form prescribed by him or her for a license to operate the plant or establishment. In case of change of ownership or change of location, a new application shall be made. Any person engaged in more than one licensed activity shall obtain separate licenses for each activity.

(c) The head of service shall investigate all circumstances in connection with the application for license to determine whether the applicable requirements of this chapter and rules made under it have been complied with. The ~~secretary~~ Secretary shall grant, condition, or refuse the license upon the basis of all information available to him or her including all facts disclosed by investigation. Each license shall bear an identifying number.

(d) The annual fee for a license for a retail vendor is \$15.00 for vendors without meat cutting operations, \$30.00 for vendors with meat cutting space of less than 300 square feet or meat display space of less than 20 linear feet, and \$60.00 for vendors with 300 or more square feet of meat cutting space and 20 or more linear feet of meat display space. Fees collected under this section shall be deposited in a special fund managed pursuant to 32 V.S.A. chapter 7, subchapter 5 of chapter 7 of Title 32, and shall be available to the ~~agency~~ Agency to offset the cost of administering chapter 204 of this title. For all other plants, establishments, and related businesses listed under subsection (a) of this section, except for a public warehouse licensed under chapter 67 of this title, the annual license fee shall be \$50.00.

* * *

~~(f) Itinerant custom slaughterers, who slaughter solely at a person's home or farm and who do not own, operate or work at a slaughtering plant shall be exempt from the licensing provisions of this section. An itinerant custom slaughterer may slaughter livestock owned by an individual who has entered into a contract with a person to raise the livestock on the farm where it is intended to be slaughtered. [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 4. 6 V.S.A. § 3311a is added to read:

§ 3311a. LIVESTOCK; INSPECTION; LICENSING; PERSONAL
SLAUGHTER; ITINERANT SLAUGHTER

(a) As used in this section:

(1) "Assist in the slaughter of livestock" means the act of slaughtering or butchering an animal and shall not mean the farmer's provision of a site on the farm for slaughter, provision of implements for slaughter, or the service of disposal of the carcass or offal from slaughter.

(2) "Sanitary conditions" means a site on a farm that is:

(A) clean and free of contaminants; and

(B) located or designed in a way to prevent:

(i) the occurrence of water pollution; and

(ii) the adulteration of the livestock or the slaughtered meat.

(b) The requirement for a license under section 3306 of this title or for inspection under this chapter shall not apply to the slaughter by an individual of livestock that the individual raised for the individual's exclusive use or for the use of members of his or her household and his or her nonpaying guests and employees.

(c) The requirement for a license under section 3306 of this title or for inspection under this chapter shall not apply to the slaughter of livestock that occurs in a manner that meets all of the following requirements:

(1) an individual purchases livestock from a farmer that raised the livestock;

(2) the individual who purchased the livestock performs the act of slaughtering the livestock;

(3) the act of slaughter occurs, after approval from the farmer who sold the livestock, on a site on the farm where the livestock was purchased;

(4) the slaughter is conducted under sanitary conditions;

(5) the farmer who sold the livestock to the individual does not assist in the slaughter of the livestock; and

(6) no more than the following number of livestock per year are slaughtered under this subsection:

(A) 10 swine;

(B) three cattle;

(C) 25 sheep or goats; or

(D) any combination of swine, cattle, sheep, or goats, provided that no more than 3,500 pounds of the live weight of livestock are slaughtered per year; and

(7) the farmer who sold the livestock to the individual maintains a record of each slaughter conducted under this subsection and reports to the Secretary on or before the 15th day of each month regarding all slaughter activity conducted under this subsection in the previous month.

(d) The requirement for a license under section 3306 of this title or for inspection under this chapter shall not apply to an itinerant slaughterer engaged in the act of itinerant livestock slaughter or itinerant poultry slaughter.

(e) An itinerant slaughterer may slaughter livestock owned by a person on the farm where the livestock was raised under the following conditions:

(1) the meat from the slaughter of the livestock is distributed only as whole or half carcasses to the person who owned the animal for their personal use or for use by members of their households or nonpaying guests; and

(2) the slaughter is conducted under sanitary conditions.

(f) A carcass or offal from slaughter conducted under this section shall be disposed of according to the requirements under the accepted agricultural practices for the management of agricultural waste.

* * * Public Warehouses that Store Farm Products * * *

Sec. 5. 6 V.S.A. § 891 is amended to read:

§ 891. LICENSE

Excepting frozen food locker plants, any person, as defined in 9A V.S.A. §§ 1-201 and 7-102, who stores milk, cream, butter, cheese, eggs, ~~dressed~~ meat, poultry and fruit for hire in quantities of 1,000 pounds or more of ~~each~~ any commodity shall first be licensed by the ~~secretary of agriculture, food and markets~~ Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets. Each separate place of business shall be licensed.

* * * Commerce and Trade; Weights and Measures * * *

Sec. 6. 9 V.S.A. § 2697 is amended to read:

§ 2697. LIQUID FUELS

(a) Liquid fuels including motor fuels, furnace oils, stove oils, ~~liquified~~ liquefied petroleum gas, and other liquid fuels used for similar purposes shall be sold by liquid measure or by net weight in accordance with the provisions of section 2671 of this title. In the case of each delivery of liquid fuel not in package form, and in an amount greater than 10 gallons in the case of sale by liquid measure or 99 pounds in the case of sale by weight, there shall be rendered to the purchaser, either;

(1) at the time of delivery; or

(2) within a period mutually agreed upon in writing or otherwise between the vendor and the purchaser, a delivery ticket or a written statement on which, in ink, or other indelible substance, there shall be clearly and legibly stated:

(A) the name and address of the vendor;

(B) the name and address of the purchaser;

(C) the identity of the type of fuel comprising the delivery;

(D) the unit price (that is, the price per gallon or per pound, as the case may be) of the fuel delivered;

(E) in the case of sale by liquid measure, the liquid volume of the delivery shall be determined by a meter with a register printing the meter readings on a ticket, a copy of which shall be given to the purchaser, from which such liquid volume shall be computed, expressed in terms of the gallon and its binary or decimal subdivisions (the ticket shall not be inserted into the register until immediately before delivery is begun, and in no case shall a ticket be in the register when the vehicle is in motion); or the liquid volume may be determined by a vehicle tank used as a measure when in full compliance with Handbook H-44 and calibrated by a weights and measures official. Sale by a liquid measuring device as defined in Handbook H-44, and sale by a vapor meter are excluded from this section. The volume of liquid fuels delivered on consignment shall be computed and charged for only from the totalizers on the devices dispensing the product;

(F) in the case of sale by weight, the net weight of the delivery, together with any weighing scale readings from which that net weight has been computed, expressed in terms of tons or pounds avoirdupois.

(b) The use of temperature compensation during delivery of all liquid fuels, with the exception of the delivery of liquefied petroleum gas, is prohibited. The Secretary shall enforce this prohibition in the same manner as other violations of this chapter.

* * * Dairy Operations * * *

Sec. 7. 6 V.S.A. § 2672 is amended to read:

§ 2672. DEFINITIONS

As used in this part, the following terms have the following meanings:

* * *

(7) “Milk₂”; unless preceded or succeeded by an explanatory term, means the pure lacteal secretion of ~~a type of~~ dairy cattle. Milk from other dairy livestock listed in this subdivision shall be preceded by the common name for the type of livestock that produced the milk. Such milk may be standardized by the addition of pure, fresh skim milk or cream as defined by regulation.

* * *

(10) “Fluid dairy products” are milk and fluid dairy products derived from milk, including cultured products, as defined by regulations ~~made under~~

this part adopted by federal entities and published in the Code of Federal Regulations.

* * *

Sec. 8. 6 V.S.A. § 2723a is added to read:

§ 2723a. DISTRIBUTOR'S LICENSES

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to distribute fluid dairy products without a license issued by the Secretary. The Secretary shall license all distributors at least annually and for a term of up to three years and shall issue and renew such licenses on any calendar cycle. Application for the license and renewal shall be made in the manner and form prescribed by the Secretary and shall be accompanied by a license fee of \$15.00 per annum or any part thereof.

(b) No person shall be granted a license under this section unless the distributor first agrees to withhold the state tax on producers whose milk has been received by the distributor imposed under chapter 161 of this title.

(c) As used in this section, the term "distributor" has the same meaning as set forth in section 2672 of this chapter, which includes the retail distribution or sale of milk, except the sale of milk to be consumed on the premises.

(d) Any distributor who carries on a business without a license shall be subject to penalty under sections 2678 and 2679 of this title.

* * * Mosquito Abatement * * *

Sec. 9. 6 V.S.A. § 1085 is amended to read:

§ 1085. MOSQUITO CONTROL GRANT PROGRAM

(a) A mosquito control district formed pursuant to ~~24 V.S.A.~~ chapter 121 of ~~Title 24~~ may apply, in a manner prescribed by the ~~secretary~~ Secretary, in writing to the ~~secretary of agriculture, food and markets~~ Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets, for a state assistance grant for mosquito control activities.

(b) After submission of an application under subsection (a) of this section, the ~~secretary of agriculture, food and markets~~ Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets may award a grant of 75 percent or less of the project costs for the purchase and application of larvicide and the costs associated with required larval survey activities within a mosquito control district. The mosquito control district may provide 25 percent of the project costs through in-kind services, including adulticide application or the purchase of capital equipment used for mosquito control activities.

* * *

* * * Agricultural Water Quality;
Nutrient Management Planning * * *

Sec. 10. 6 V.S.A. § 4801 is amended to read:

§ 4801. PURPOSE; STATE POLICY

It is the purpose of this chapter to ensure that agricultural animal wastes do not enter the waters of this ~~state~~ State. Therefore, it is state policy that:

(1) All farms meet certain standards in the handling and disposal of animal wastes, as provided by this chapter and the cost of meeting these standards shall not be borne by farmers only, but rather by all members of society, who are in fact the beneficiaries. Accordingly, state and federal funds shall be made available to farms, regardless of size, to defray the major cost of complying with the ~~animal-waste~~ requirements of this chapter. State and federal conservation programs to assist farmers should be directed to those farms that need to improve their infrastructure to prohibit direct discharges or bring existing water pollution control structures into compliance with United States Department of Agriculture (U.S.D.A.) Natural Resources Conservation Service standards. Additional resources should be directed to education and technical assistance for farmers to improve the management of agricultural wastes and protect water quality.

(2) Officials who administer the provisions of this chapter:

(A) shall educate farmers and other affected citizens on requirements of this chapter through an outreach collaboration with farm associations and other community groups; ~~and~~

(B) shall, in the process of rendering official decisions, afford farmers and other affected citizens an opportunity to be heard and give consideration to all interests expressed; and

(C) may provide grants from a program established under this chapter to eligible Vermont municipalities, local or regional governmental agencies, nonprofit organizations, and citizen groups in order to provide direct financial assistance to farms in implementing conservation practices.

Sec. 11. 6 V.S.A. § 4827 is amended to read:

§ 4827. NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLANNING; INCENTIVE GRANTS

(a) A farm developing or implementing a nutrient management plan under chapter 215 of this title or federal regulations may apply to the ~~secretary of agriculture, food and markets~~ Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets for financial assistance. The financial assistance shall be in the form of incentive grants. Annually, after consultation with the Natural Resources Conservation

Service of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, natural resources conservation districts, the University of Vermont extension service and others, the ~~secretary~~ Secretary shall determine the average cost of developing and implementing a nutrient management plan in Vermont. The dollar amount of an incentive grant awarded under this section shall be equal to the average cost of developing a nutrient management plan as determined by the ~~secretary~~ Secretary or the cost of complying with the nutrient management planning requirements of chapter 215 of this title or federal regulations, whichever is less.

(b) Application for a state assistance grant shall be made in a manner prescribed by the ~~secretary~~ Secretary and shall include, at a minimum:

(1) an estimated cost of developing and implementing a nutrient management plan for the applicant;

(2) the amount of incentive grant requested; and

(3) a schedule for development and implementation of the nutrient management plan.

(c) The ~~secretary~~ Secretary annually shall prepare a list of farms ranked, regardless of size, in priority order that have applied for an incentive grant under this section. The priority list shall be established according to factors that the ~~secretary~~ Secretary determines are relevant to protect the quality of waters of the ~~state~~ State, including:

(1) the proximity of a farm to a water listed as impaired for agricultural runoff, pathogens, phosphorus, or sediment by the ~~agency of natural resources~~ Agency of Natural Resources;

(2) the proximity of a farm to an unimpaired water of the ~~state~~ State;

(3) the proximity of a drinking water well to land where a farm applies manure; and

(4) the risk of discharge to waters of the ~~state~~ State from the land application of manure by a farm.

(d) Assistance in accordance with this section shall be provided from state funds appropriated to the ~~agency of agriculture, food and markets~~ Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets for integrated crop management.

(e) If the ~~secretary~~ Secretary lacks adequate funds necessary for the financial assistance required by subsection (a) of this section, the requirement to develop and implement a nutrient management plan under state statute or state regulation shall be suspended until adequate funding becomes available. Suspension of a state-required nutrient management plan does not relieve an

owner or operator of a farm permitted under section 4858 of this title of the remaining requirements of a state permit, including discharge standards, groundwater protection, and land application of manure. This subsection does not apply to farms permitted under 10 V.S.A. § 1263 or farms permitted under section 4851 of this title.

(f) The ~~secretary~~ Secretary may contract with natural resources conservation districts, the University of Vermont extension service, and other persons and organizations to aid in the implementation of the incentive grants program under subsection (a) of this section and to assist farmers in the development and implementation of nutrient management plans.

(g) ~~Notwithstanding the requirements of subsection (c) of this section, the secretary may, as general funds are appropriated for this purpose, provide a one-time incentive payment under this section to encourage farmers to inject manure on grass or crop land over one growing season. [Repealed.]~~

Sec. 12. 6 V.S.A. § 4951 is amended to read:

§ 4951. FARM AGRONOMIC PRACTICES PROGRAM

(a) ~~The farm agronomic practices assistance program~~ Farm Agronomic Practices Assistance Program is created in the ~~agency of agriculture, food and markets~~ Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets to provide the farms of Vermont with state financial assistance for the implementation of soil-based practices that improve soil quality and nutrient retention, increase crop production, minimize erosion potential, and reduce agricultural waste discharges. The following practices shall be eligible for assistance to farms under the grant program:

- (1) conservation crop rotation;
- (2) cover cropping;
- (3) strip cropping;
- (4) cross-slope tillage;
- (5) zone or no-tillage;
- (6) pre-sidedress nitrate tests;
- (7) annual maintenance of a nutrient management plan that is no longer receiving funding under a state or federal contract, provided the maximum assistance provided to a farmer under this subdivision shall be ~~\$1,000.00~~ \$2,000.00 per year;
- (8) educational and instructional activities to inform the farmers and citizens of Vermont of:

- (A) the impact on Vermont waters of agricultural waste discharges;
 - (B) the federal and state requirements for controlling agricultural waste discharges;
 - (9) implementing alternative manure application techniques; and
 - (10) additional soil erosion reduction practices.
- (b) Funding available under section 4827 of this title for nutrient management planning may be used to fund practices under this section.

* * * Sunset; Livestock Slaughter Exemptions * * *

Sec. 13. REPEAL; LIVESTOCK SLAUGHTER EXEMPTIONS

6 V.S.A. § 3311a (livestock slaughter inspection and license exemptions) shall be repealed on July 1, 2016.

* * * Effective Date * * *

Sec. 14. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

(Committee vote: 4-0-1)

(No House amendments.)

H. 521.

An act relating to making miscellaneous amendments to education law.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator McCormack for the Committee on Education.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: By deleting Sec. 2 in its entirety

Second: After Sec. 7, by inserting three new sections to be Secs. 7a through 7c to read:

Sec. 7a. 33 V.S.A. § 6911(a)(1) is amended to read:

(1) The investigative report shall be disclosed only to: the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner or person designated to receive such records; persons assigned by the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner to investigate reports; the person reported to have abused, neglected, or exploited a vulnerable adult; the vulnerable adult or his or her representative; the ~~office of professional regulation~~ Office of Professional Regulation when deemed appropriate by the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner; the Secretary of Education when deemed appropriate by the

Commissioner; a law enforcement agency, the ~~state's attorney, or the office of the attorney general~~ State's Attorney, or the Office of the Attorney General, when the ~~department~~ Department believes there may be grounds for criminal prosecution or civil enforcement action, or in the course of a criminal or a civil investigation. When disclosing information pursuant to this subdivision, reasonable efforts shall be made to limit the information to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure, and no other information, including the identity of the reporter, shall be released absent a court order.

Sec. 7b. 33 V.S.A. § 6911(c) is amended to read:

(c) The ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner or the ~~commissioner's~~ Commissioner's designee may disclose registry information only to:

* * *

(7) upon request or when relevant to other states' adult protective services offices; ~~and~~

(8) the ~~board of medical practice~~ Board of Medical Practice for the purpose of evaluating an applicant, licensee, or holder of certification pursuant to 26 V.S.A. § 1353; ~~and~~

(9) the Secretary of Education or the Secretary's designee, for purposes related to the licensing of professional educators pursuant to 16 V.S.A. chapter 5, subchapter 4 and chapter 51.

Sec. 7c. 16 V.S.A. § 253 is amended to read:

§ 253. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS

(a) Criminal records and criminal record information received under this subchapter are designated confidential unless, under state or federal law or regulation, the record or information may be disclosed to specifically designated persons.

(b) The Secretary, a superintendent, or a headmaster may disclose criminal records and criminal record information received under this subchapter to a qualified entity upon request, provided that the qualified entity has signed a user agreement and received authorization from the subject of the record request. As used in this section, "qualified entity" means an individual, organization, or governmental body doing business in Vermont that has one or more individuals performing services for it within the State and that provides care or services to children, persons who are elders, or persons with disabilities as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 5119c.

Third: By deleting Sec. 11 in its entirety

Fourth: By striking Secs. 16 through 18 in their entirety and inserting in lieu thereof three new sections to be Secs. 16 through 18 to read:

* * * Creation of New Independent Schools * * *

Sec. 16. 16 V.S.A. § 821(e) is added to read:

(e) Notwithstanding the authority of a school district to cease operation of an elementary school and to begin paying tuition on behalf of its resident elementary students pursuant to subdivision (a)(1) or subsection (d) of this section, a school district shall not cease operation of an elementary school with the intention, for the purpose, or with the result of having the school building or buildings reopen as an independent school serving essentially the same population of students.

Sec. 17. 16 V.S.A. § 822(d) is added to read:

(d) Notwithstanding the authority of a school district to cease operation of a secondary school and to begin paying tuition on behalf of its resident secondary students pursuant to subdivision (a)(1) of this section, a school district shall not cease operation of a secondary school with the intention, for the purpose, or with the result of having the school building or buildings reopen as an independent school serving essentially the same population of students.

Sec. 18. 16 V.S.A. § 166(b)(8) is added to read:

(8) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, approval under this subsection of a new or existing independent school that proposes to operate in a building in which a school district operated a school is subject to either subsection 821(e) or 822(d) of this title, as appropriate for the grades operated.

Fifth: By striking Sec. 20 and inserting in lieu thereof 14 new sections to be Secs. 20 through 33 and related reader assistance headings to read:

* * * Transportation Grants * * *

Sec. 20. 16 V.S.A. § 4016(c) is amended to read:

~~(c) A district may apply and the commissioner may pay for extraordinary transportation expenditures incurred due to geographic or other conditions such as the need to transport students out of the school district to attend another school because the district does not maintain a public school. The state board of education shall define extraordinary transportation expenditures by rule. The total amount of base year extraordinary transportation grant expenditures shall be \$250,000.00 for fiscal year 1997, increased each year thereafter by the annual price index for state and local government purchases of goods and services. Extraordinary transportation expenditures shall not be paid out of the~~

~~funds appropriated under subsection (b) of this section for other transportation expenditures. Grants paid under this section shall be paid from the education fund and shall be added to adjusted education payment receipts paid under section 4011 of this title. [Repealed.]~~

* * * Compact for Military Children * * *

Sec. 21. 16 V.S.A. § 806m.E is amended to read:

E. The Interstate Commission may not assess, levy, or collect from Vermont in its annual assessment more than ~~\$100~~ \$2,000.00 per year. Other funding sources may be accepted and used to offset expenses related to the ~~state's~~ State's participation in the compact.

Sec. 22. AGENCY OF EDUCATION BUDGET

There shall be no separate or additional General Fund appropriation to the Agency of Education in fiscal year 2014 for purposes of funding the increased assessment to be paid pursuant to Sec. 21 of this act.

* * * Adult Basic Education * * *

Sec. 23. 16 V.S.A. § 164 is amended to read:

§ 164. STATE BOARD; GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES

The ~~state board~~ State Board shall evaluate education policy proposals, including timely evaluation of policies presented by the ~~governor~~ Governor and ~~secretary~~ Secretary; engage local school board members and the broader education community; and establish and advance education policy for the ~~state~~ State of Vermont. In addition to other specified duties, the ~~board~~ Board shall:

* * *

(13) ~~Constitute~~ Be the state board State Board for the program of adult education and literacy and perform all the duties and powers prescribed by law pertaining to adult education and literacy and to act as the state approval agency for educational institutions conducting programs of adult education and literacy.

* * *

* * * Special Education Employees; Transition to Employment

by Supervisory Unions * * *

Sec. 24. 2010 Acts and Resolves No. 153, Sec. 18, as amended by 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 58, Sec. 18, is further amended to read:

Sec. 18. TRANSITION

(a) Each supervisory union shall provide for any transition of employment of special education and transportation ~~staff~~ employees by member districts to employment by the supervisory union, pursuant to Sec. 9 of this act, 16 V.S.A. § 261a(a)(6), and (8)(E) by:

(1) providing that the supervisory union assumes all obligations of each existing collective bargaining agreement in effect between the member districts and their special education employees and their transportation employees until the agreement's expiration, subject to employee compliance with performance standards and any lawful reduction in force, layoff, nonrenewal, or dismissal;

(2) providing, in the absence of an existing recognized representative of its employees, for the immediate and voluntary recognition by the supervisory union of the recognized representatives of the employees of the member districts as the recognized representatives of the employees of the supervisory union;

(3) ensuring that an employee of a member district who is not a probationary employee shall not be considered a probationary employee upon transition to the supervisory union; and

(4) ~~containing an agreement~~ negotiating a collective bargaining agreement, addressing special education employees, with the recognized representatives of the employees of the member districts that is effective on the day the supervisory union assumes obligations of existing agreements regarding how the supervisory union, prior to reaching its first collective bargaining agreement with its special education employees and with its transportation employees, will address issues of seniority, reduction in force, layoff, and recall, which, for the purposes of this section, shall be: the exclusive representative of special education teachers; the exclusive representative of the special education administrators; and the exclusive bargaining agent for special education paraeducators if the supervisory union has elected to employ special education paraeducators pursuant to subdivision (b)(3) of this section. The supervisory union shall become the employer of these employees on the date specified in the ratified agreement.

(b) For purposes of this section and Sec. 9 of this act, "special education employee" shall include a special education teacher, a special education administrator, and a special education paraeducator, which means a teacher, administrator, or paraeducator whose job assignment consists of providing special education services directly related to students' individualized education programs or to the administration of those services. Provided, however, that "special education employee" shall include a "special education paraeducator" only if the supervisory union board elects to employ some or all special education paraeducators because it determines that doing so will lead to more

effective and efficient delivery of special education services to students. If the supervisory union board does not elect to employ all special education paraeducators, it must use objective, nondiscriminatory criteria and identify specific duties to be performed when determining which categories of special education paraeducators to employ.

(c) Education-related parties to negotiations under either Title 16 or 21 shall incorporate in their current or next negotiations matters addressing the terms and conditions of special education employees.

(d) If a supervisory union has not entered into a collective bargaining agreement with the representative of its prospective special education employees by August 15, 2015, it shall provide the Secretary of Education with a report identifying the reasons for not meeting the deadline and an estimated date by which it expects to ratify the agreement.

Sec. 25. 16 V.S.A. § 1981(8) is amended to read:

(8) "School board negotiations council" means, for a supervisory district, its school board, and, for school districts within a supervisory union, the body comprising representatives designated by each school board within the supervisory union and by the supervisory union board to engage in professional negotiations with a teachers' or administrators' organization.

Sec. 26. 21 V.S.A. § 1722(18) is amended to read:

(18) "School board negotiations council" means, for a supervisory district, its school board, and, for school districts within a supervisory union, the body comprising representatives designated by each school board within the supervisory union and by the supervisory union board to engage in collective bargaining with their school employees' negotiations council.

Sec. 27. EXCESS SPENDING; TRANSITION

For purposes of calculating excess spending pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 5401(12) in fiscal years 2014 through 2017, "education spending" shall not include the portion of a district's proposed budget that is directly attributable to assessments from the supervisory union for special education services that exceeds the portion of the district's proposed budget in the year prior to transition for special education services provided by the district.

Sec. 28. APPLICABILITY

Only school districts and supervisory unions that have not completed the transition of special education employees to employment by the supervisory union or have not negotiated transition provisions into current master agreements as of the effective dates of Secs. 24 through 27 of this act are subject to the employment transition provisions of those sections.

Sec. 29. REPORT

On or before January 1, 2017, the Secretary of Education shall report to the House and Senate Committees on Education regarding the decisions of supervisory unions to exercise or not to exercise the flexibility regarding employment of special education paraeducators provided in Sec. 24 of this act and may propose amendments to Sec. 24 or to related statutes as he or she deems appropriate.

* * * Early Education; Labor Relations * * *

Sec. 30. FINDINGS

The General Assembly finds:

(1) The early education a child receives before school age, particularly before the age of three, has a profound effect on a child's development during this critical stage of life. Investments in the consistency and quality of early education lay a vital foundation for the future cognitive, social, and academic success of Vermont children.

(2) Early education providers should have the opportunity to work collectively with the State to enhance professional development and educational opportunities for early educators, to increase child care subsidy funding to enable more children to receive critical early education opportunities, and to ensure the continual improvement of early education in Vermont.

Sec. 31. 33 V.S.A. chapter 36 is added to read:

CHAPTER 36. EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION PROVIDERS

LABOR RELATIONS ACT

§ 3601. PURPOSE

(a) The General Assembly recognizes the right of all early care and education providers to bargain collectively with the State over matters within the State's control and identified as subjects of bargaining pursuant to subsection 3603(b) of this chapter.

(b) The General Assembly intends to create an opportunity for early care and education providers to choose to form a union and bargain with the State over matters within the State's control and identified as subjects of bargaining pursuant to subsection 3603(b) of this chapter.

(c) Specific terms and conditions of employment at individual child care centers, which are the subject of traditional collective bargaining between employers and employees, are outside the limited scope of this act.

(d) The matters subject to this chapter are those within the control of the State of Vermont and relevant to all early care and education providers.

(e) Early care and education providers do not forfeit their rights under the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. § 151, et seq., or the Vermont State Labor Relations Act, 21 V.S.A. § 1501, et seq., by becoming members of an organization that represents them in their dealings with the State. The terms and conditions of employment with individual early care and education providers, which are the subjects of traditional collective bargaining between employers and employees and which are governed by federal law, fall outside the limited scope of bargaining defined in this chapter.

§ 3602. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) “Board” means the State Labor Relations Board established under 3 V.S.A. § 921.

(2) “Early care and education provider” means a licensed child care home provider, a registered child care home provider, or a legally exempt child care home provider who provides child care services as defined in subdivision 3511(3) of this title.

(3) “Subsidy payment” means any payment made by the State to assist families in paying for child care services through the State’s child care financial assistance program.

(4) “Collective bargaining” or “bargaining collectively” means the process by which the State and the exclusive representative of early care and education providers negotiate terms or conditions related to the subjects of collective bargaining identified in subsection 3603(b) of this title which when reached and funded shall be legally binding.

(5) “Exclusive representative” means the labor organization that has been elected or recognized and certified by the Board under this chapter and consequently has the exclusive right under section 3608 of this title to represent early care and education providers for the purpose of collective bargaining and the enforcement of any contract provisions.

(6) “Grievance” means the exclusive representative’s formal written complaint regarding an improper application of one or more terms of the collective bargaining agreement.

§ 3603. ESTABLISHMENT OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

(a) Early care and education providers, through their exclusive representative, shall have the right to bargain collectively with the State through the Governor's designee.

(b) Mandatory subjects of bargaining are limited to child care subsidy reimbursement rates and payment procedures, professional development, the collection of dues or agency fees and disbursement to the exclusive representative, and procedures for resolving grievances. The parties may also negotiate on any mutually agreed matters that are not in conflict with state or federal law.

(c) The State, acting through the Governor's designee, shall meet with the exclusive representative for the purpose of entering into a written agreement.

(d) Early care and education providers shall be considered employees and the State shall be considered the employer solely for the purpose of collective bargaining under this chapter. Early care and education providers shall not be considered state employees other than for purposes of collective bargaining, including for purposes of vicarious liability in tort, and for purposes of unemployment compensation or workers' compensation. Early care and education providers shall not be eligible for participation in the state employees' retirement system or the health insurance plans available to executive branch employees solely by virtue of bargaining under this chapter.

(e) Agency fees may be collected only from early care and education providers who receive subsidy payments from the State.

§ 3604. RIGHTS OF EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION PROVIDERS

Early care and education providers shall have the right to:

(1) organize, form, join, or assist any union or labor organization for the purpose of collective bargaining without any interference, restraint, or coercion;

(2) bargain collectively through a representative of their own choice;

(3) engage in concerted activities for the purpose of supporting or engaging in collective bargaining;

(4) pursue grievances through the exclusive representative as negotiated pursuant to this chapter; and

(5) refrain from any or all such activities.

§ 3605. RIGHTS OF THE STATE

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to interfere with right of the State to:

(1) take necessary actions to carry out the mission of the Agency of Human Services;

(2) comply with federal and state laws and regulations regarding child care and child care subsidies;

(3) enforce child care regulations and regulatory processes including regulations regarding the qualifications of early care and education providers and the prevention of abuse in connection with the provisions of child care services;

(4) develop child care regulations and regulatory processes subject to the rulemaking authority of the General Assembly and the Human Services Board;

(5) establish and administer quality standards under the Step Ahead Recognition system;

(6) solicit and accept for use any grant of money, services, or property from the federal government, the State, or any political subdivision or agency of the State, including federal matching funds, and to cooperate with the federal government or any political subdivision or agency of the State in making an application for any grant; and

(7) refuse to take any action that would diminish the quantity or quality of child care provided under existing law.

§ 3606. UNIT

(a) The bargaining unit shall be composed of licensed home child care providers, registered home child care providers, and legally exempt child care providers as defined in this chapter.

(b) Early care and education providers may select an exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining by using the procedures in sections 3607 and 3608 of this title.

(c) The exclusive representative of the early care and education providers is required to represent all of the providers in the unit without regard to membership in the union.

§ 3607. PETITIONS FOR ELECTION; FILING; INVESTIGATIONS; HEARINGS; DETERMINATIONS

(a) A petition may be filed with the Board in accordance with regulations prescribed by the Board:

(1) By an early care and education provider or group of providers or any individual or labor organization acting on the providers' behalf:

(A) alleging that not less than 30 percent of the providers in the petitioned bargaining unit wish to be represented for collective bargaining and that the State declines to recognize their representative as the representative defined in this chapter; or

(B) asserting that the labor organization that has been certified as the bargaining representative no longer represents a majority of early care and education providers.

(2) By the State alleging that one or more individuals or labor organizations has presented a claim to be recognized as the exclusive representative defined in this chapter.

(b) The Board shall investigate the petition and, if it has reasonable cause to believe that a question concerning representation exists, shall conduct a hearing. The hearing shall be held before the Board, a member of the Board, or its agents appointed for that purpose upon due notice. Written notice of the hearing shall be mailed by certified mail to the parties named in the petition not less than seven days before the hearing. If the Board finds upon the record of the hearing that a question of representation exists, it shall conduct an election by secret ballot and certify to the parties, in writing, the results thereof.

(c) In determining whether or not a question of representation exists, the Board shall apply the same regulations and rules of decision regardless of the identity of the persons filing the petition or the kind of relief sought.

(d) Nothing in this chapter prohibits the waiving of hearings by stipulation for a consent election in conformity with regulations and rules of the Board.

(e) For the purposes of this chapter, the State may voluntarily recognize the exclusive representative of a unit of early care and education providers if the labor organization demonstrates that it has the support of a majority of the providers in the unit it seeks to represent and no other employee organization seeks to represent the providers.

§ 3608. ELECTION; RUNOFF ELECTIONS

(a) If a question of representation exists, the Board shall conduct a secret ballot election to determine the exclusive representative of the unit of early care and education providers. The original ballot shall be prepared to permit a vote against representation by anyone named on the ballot. The labor organization receiving a majority of votes cast shall be certified by the Board as the exclusive representative of the unit of early care and education providers. In any election in which there are three or more choices, including the choice of "no union," and none of the choices on the ballot receives a

majority, a runoff election shall be conducted by the Board. The ballot shall provide for a selection between the two choices receiving the largest and second largest number of valid votes cast in the election.

(b) An election shall not be directed if in the preceding 12 months a valid election has been held.

§ 3609. POWERS OF REPRESENTATIVES

The exclusive representative shall be the exclusive representative of all the early care and education providers in the unit for the purposes of collective bargaining and the resolution of grievances.

§ 3610. NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT; FUNDING

If the State and the exclusive representative reach an agreement, the Governor shall request from the General Assembly an appropriation sufficient to fund the agreement in the next operating budget. If the General Assembly appropriates sufficient funds, the negotiated agreement shall become effective and binding at the beginning of the next fiscal year. If the General Assembly appropriates a different amount of funds, the terms of the agreement affected by that appropriation shall be renegotiated based on the amount of funds actually appropriated by the General Assembly and shall become effective and legally binding in the next fiscal year.

§ 3611. MEDIATION; FACT-FINDING; LAST BEST OFFER

(a) If after a reasonable period of negotiation, the exclusive representative and the State reach an impasse, the Board upon petition of either party may authorize the parties to submit their differences to mediation. Within five days after receipt of the petition, the Board shall appoint a mediator who shall communicate with the parties and attempt to mediate an amicable settlement. A mediator shall be of high standing and not affiliated with either labor or management.

(b) If after a minimum of 15 days after the appointment of a mediator, the impasse is not resolved, the mediator shall certify to the Board that the impasse continues.

(c) Upon the request of either party, the Board shall appoint a fact finder who has been mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties fail to agree on a fact finder within five days, the Board shall appoint a fact finder who shall be a person of high standing and shall not be affiliated with either labor or management. A member of the Board or any individual who has actively participated in mediation proceedings for which fact-finding has been called shall not be eligible to serve as a fact finder under this section unless agreed upon by the parties.

(d) The fact finder shall conduct hearings pursuant to rules of the Board. Upon request of either party or of the fact finder, the Board may issue subpoenas of persons and documents for the hearings and the fact finder may require that testimony be given under oath and may administer oaths.

(e) Nothing in this section shall prohibit the fact finder from mediating the dispute at any time prior to issuing recommendations.

(f) In making a recommendation, the fact finder shall consider whether the proposal increases the amount and quality of care provided to children and families in a manner that is more affordable for Vermont families and citizens and whether the subsidies provided are consistent with federal guidance.

(g) Upon completion of the hearings, the fact finder shall file written findings and recommendations with both parties.

(h) The costs of witnesses and other expenses incurred by either party in fact-finding proceedings shall be paid directly by the parties incurring them, and the costs and expenses of the fact finder shall be paid equally by the parties. The fact finder shall be paid a rate mutually agreed upon by the parties for each day or any part of a day while performing fact-finding duties and shall be reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties. A statement of fact-finding per diem and expenses shall be certified by the fact finder and submitted to the Board for approval. The Board shall provide a copy of approved fact-finding costs to each party with its order apportioning half of the total to each party for payment. Each party shall pay its half of the total within 15 days after receipt of the order. Approval by the Board of the fact finder's costs and expenses and its order for payment shall be final as to the parties.

(i) If the dispute remains unresolved 15 days after transmittal of findings and recommendations, each party shall submit to the Board its last best offer on all disputed issues as a single package. Each party's last best offer shall be filed with the Board under seal and shall be unsealed and placed in the public record only when both parties' last best offers are filed with the Board. The Board may hold hearings and consider the recommendations of the fact finder. Within 30 days of the certifications, the Board shall select between the last best offers of the parties, considered in their entirety without amendment, and shall determine that selection's cost. The Board shall not issue an order under this subsection that is in conflict with any law or rule or that relates to an issue that is not a mandatory subject of collective bargaining. The Board shall determine the cost of the agreement selected and recommend to the General Assembly its choice with a request for appropriation. If the General Assembly appropriates sufficient funds, the agreement shall become effective and legally binding at the beginning of the next fiscal year. If the General Assembly appropriates a

different amount of funds, the terms of the agreement affected by that appropriation shall be renegotiated based on the amount of funds actually appropriated by the General Assembly, and the agreement with the negotiated changes shall become effective and binding at the beginning of the next fiscal year.

§ 3612. GENERAL DUTIES AND PROHIBITED CONDUCT

(a) The State and all early care and education providers and their representatives shall exert every reasonable effort to make and maintain agreements concerning matters allowable under this chapter and to settle all disputes, whether arising out of the application of those agreements or growing out of any disputes concerning those agreements. However, this obligation does not compel either party to agree to a proposal or make a concession.

(b) It shall be an unfair labor practice for the State to:

(1) interfere with, restrain, or coerce early care and education providers in the exercise of their rights under this chapter or by any other law, rule, or regulation;

(2) discriminate against an early care and education provider because of the provider's affiliation with a labor organization or because a provider has filed charges or complaints or has given testimony under this chapter;

(3) take negative action against an early care and education provider because the provider has taken actions such as signing a petition, grievance, or affidavit that demonstrates the provider's support for a labor organization;

(4) refuse to bargain collectively in good faith with the exclusive representative;

(5) discriminate against an early care and education provider based on race, color, religion, ancestry, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, place of birth, marital status, or against a qualified disabled individual; or

(6) request or require an early care and education provider to have an HIV-related blood test or discriminate against a provider on the basis of HIV status of the provider.

(c) It shall be an unfair labor practice for the exclusive representative to:

(1) restrain or coerce early care and education providers in the exercise of the rights guaranteed to them under this chapter or by law, rule, or regulation. However, a labor organization may prescribe its own rules with respect to the acquisition or retention of membership provided such rules are not discriminatory;

(2) cause or attempt to cause the State to discriminate against an early care and education provider or to discriminate against a provider;

(3) refuse to bargain collectively in good faith with the State; or

(4) threaten to or cause a provider to strike or curtail the provider's services in recognition of a picket line of any employee or labor organization.

(d) Early care and education providers shall not strike or curtail their services in recognition of a picket line of any employee or labor organization.

(e) Complaints related to this section shall be made and resolved in accordance with procedures set forth in 3 V.S.A. § 965.

§ 3613. ANTITRUST EXEMPTION

The activities of early care and education providers and their exclusive representatives that are necessary for the exercise of their rights under this chapter shall be afforded state action immunity under applicable federal and state antitrust laws. The State intends that the "state action" exemption to federal antitrust laws be available only to the State, to early care and education providers, and to their exclusive representative in connection with these necessary activities. Exempt activities shall be actively supervised by the State.

§ 3614. RIGHTS UNALTERED

(a) This chapter does not alter or infringe upon the rights of:

(1) a parent or legal guardian to select and discontinue child care services of any early care and education provider;

(2) an early care and education provider to choose, direct, and terminate the services of any employee that provides care in that home; or

(3) the Judiciary and General Assembly to make programmatic modifications to the delivery of state services through child care subsidy programs, including standards of eligibility for families, legal guardians, and providers participating in child care subsidy programs, and to the nature of services provided.

(b) Nothing in this chapter shall affect the rights and obligations of private sector employers and employees under the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. § 151, et seq., or the Vermont State Labor Relations Act, 21 V.S.A. § 1501, et seq. The terms and conditions of employment at individual centers, which are the subjects of traditional collective bargaining between employers and their employees and which are governed by federal laws, fall outside the limited scope of bargaining defined in this chapter.

Sec. 32. NEGOTIATIONS; EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION PROVIDERS

The State's costs of negotiating an agreement pursuant to 33 V.S.A. chapter 36 shall be borne by the State out of existing appropriations made to it by the General Assembly.

* * * Effective Dates * * *

Sec. 33. EFFECTIVE DATES

(a) Sec. 20 of this act (extraordinary transportation aid) shall take effect on July 1, 2014 and shall apply to grants that would have been made in fiscal year 2015 and after.

(b) This section and all other sections of this act shall take effect on passage; provided, however, that Sec. 14 of this act (salary) shall apply retroactively beginning on January 2, 2013.

(Committee vote: 4-1-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for April 11, 2013, page 725.)

H. 528.

An act relating to revenue changes for fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2015.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Ashe for the Committee on Finance.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

* * * Spirituous Liquor * * *

Sec. 1. 7 V.S.A. § 422 is amended to read:

§ 422. TAX ON SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR

A tax is assessed on the gross revenue on the retail sale of spirituous liquor in the ~~state~~ State of Vermont, including fortified wine, sold by the ~~liquor control board~~ Liquor Control Board or sold by a manufacturer or rectifier of spirituous liquor in accordance with the provisions of this title. The tax shall be at the following rates based on the gross revenue of the retail sales by the seller in the ~~previous~~ current year:

(1) if the gross revenue of the seller is ~~\$100,000.00~~ \$150,000.00 or lower, the rate of tax is five percent;

(2) if the gross revenue of the seller is between ~~\$100,000.00~~ ~~\$150,000.00~~ and ~~\$200,000.00~~ \$250,000.00, the rate of tax is ~~\$15,000.00~~ \$7,500.00 plus 15 percent of gross revenues over ~~\$100,000.00~~ \$150,000.00;

(3) if the gross revenue of the seller is over ~~\$200,000.00~~ \$250,000.00, the rate of tax is 25 percent.

* * * Health Care/Employer Assessment * * *

Sec. 2. 21 V.S.A. § 2002 is amended to read:

§ 2002. DEFINITIONS

~~For the purposes of~~ As used in this chapter:

* * *

(5) “Uncovered employee” means:

(A) an employee of an employer who does not offer to pay any part of the cost of health care coverage for its employees;

(B) an employee who is not eligible for health care coverage offered by an employer to any other employees; or

(C) an employee who is offered and is eligible for coverage by the employer but elects not to accept the coverage and either:

(i) has no other health care coverage under either a private or public plan; or

(ii) has health insurance coverage purchased through the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange.

* * *

Sec. 3. 21 V.S.A. § 2003 is amended to read:

§ 2003. HEALTH CARE FUND CONTRIBUTION ASSESSMENT

* * *

(b) For any quarter in fiscal years 2007 and 2008, the amount of the ~~health care fund~~ Health Care Fund contribution shall be \$ 91.25 for each full-time equivalent employee in excess of eight. For each fiscal year after fiscal year 2008, the number of excluded full-time equivalent employees shall be adjusted in accordance with subsection (a) of this section, and the amount of the ~~health care fund~~ Health Care Fund contribution shall be adjusted by a percentage equal to any percentage change in premiums for ~~Catamount Health~~ for that fiscal year; ~~provided, however, that to the extent that Catamount Health premiums decrease due to changes in benefit design or deductible amounts, the~~

~~health care fund contribution shall not be decreased by the percentage change attributable to such benefit design or deductible changes~~ the second lowest cost silver-level plan in the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange.

* * *

(d) Revenues from the ~~health care fund~~ Health Care Fund contributions collected shall be deposited into the state ~~health care resources fund~~ Health Care Resources Fund established under 33 V.S.A. § 1901d for the purpose of financing health care coverage under Catamount Health assistance, as provided under 33 V.S.A. chapter 19, subchapter 3a.

Sec. 4. 33 V.S.A. § 1812 is added to read:

§ 1812. EXCHANGE PLAN SURCHARGE

(a) In the event that the revenue projected to be generated by the Employers' Health Care Fund Contribution assessment pursuant to 21 V.S.A. chapter 25 for a given year is insufficient to cover the net operating costs of the Exchange for the same year, the premium for each health benefit plan issued through the Exchange for that year shall include a monthly surcharge to finance the remaining costs associated with the operation of the Exchange.

(b) On or before September 1 of each year, the Department of Vermont Health Access shall project the net operating costs of the Exchange for the following calendar year. On or before the same date, the Department of Vermont Health Access shall, in consultation with the Department of Labor and the Legislative Joint Fiscal Office, project the amount of revenue to be generated by the Health Care Fund Contribution assessment in the following fiscal year. If the projected costs of the Exchange exceed the projected revenue from the assessment, the Department of Vermont Health Access shall, in consultation with the Legislative Joint Fiscal Office, calculate the estimated amount of the shortfall and the amount of the per-member per-month surcharge to be applied to the premium for all plans offered through the Exchange to make up the difference.

(c) The Exchange shall impose and collect the surcharge applied pursuant to this section from purchasers of Exchange plans as part of its monthly or other regular billing process. The Commissioner of Vermont Health Access or designee shall deposit the funds collected pursuant to this section in the State Health Care Resources Fund established by section 1901d of this title.

(d) The Exchange website shall clearly indicate the dollar amount of the premium for each health benefit plan offered through the Exchange that is attributable to a surcharge established by this section.

* * * Local Option Taxes * * *

Sec. 5. 24 V.S.A. § 138(a) is amended to read:

(a) Local option taxes are authorized under this section for the purpose of affording municipalities ~~an alternative a~~ method of raising municipal revenues ~~to facilitate the transition and reduce the dislocations in those municipalities that may be caused by reforms to the method of financing public education under the Equal Educational Opportunity Act of 1997.~~ Accordingly:

~~(1) the local option taxes authorized under this section may be imposed by a municipality;~~

~~(2) a municipality opting to impose a local option tax may do so prior to July 1, 1998 to be effective beginning January 1, 1999, and anytime after December 1, 1998 a local option tax shall be effective beginning on the next tax quarter following 90 days' notice to the department of taxes of the imposition; and~~

~~(3) a local option tax may only be adopted by a municipality in which:~~

~~(A) the education property tax rate in 1997 was less than \$1.10 per \$100.00 of equalized education property value; or~~

~~(B) the equalized grand list value of personal property, business machinery, inventory, and equipment is at least ten percent of the equalized education grand list as reported in the 1998 Annual Report of the Division of Property Valuation and Review; or~~

~~(C) the combined education tax rate of the municipality will increase by 20 percent or more in fiscal year 1999 or in fiscal year 2000 over the rate of the combined education property tax in the previous fiscal year. A local option tax shall be effective beginning on the next tax quarter following 90 days' notice to the Department of Taxes of the imposition.~~

* * * Tax Expenditures * * *

Sec. 6. 32 V.S.A. § 312(d) is added to read:

(d) Every tax expenditure in the tax expenditure report required by this section shall be accompanied in statute by a statutory purpose explaining the policy goal behind the exemption, exclusion, deduction, or credit applicable to the tax. The statutory purpose shall appear as a separate subsection or subdivision in statute and shall bear the title "Statutory Purpose." Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a tax expenditure listed in the tax expenditure report that lacks a statutory purpose in statute shall not be implemented or enforced until a statutory purpose is provided.

Sec. 7. TAX EXPENDITURE PURPOSES

The Joint Fiscal Committee shall draft a statutory purpose for each tax expenditure in the report required by 32 V.S.A. § 312 that explains the policy goal behind the exemption, exclusion, deduction, or credit applicable to the tax. For the purpose of this report, the Committee shall have the assistance of the Department of Taxes, the Joint Fiscal Office, and the Office of Legislative Council. The Committee shall report its findings and recommendations to the Senate Committee on Finance and the House Committee on Ways and Means by January 15, 2014. The report of the Committee shall consist of a written catalogue for Vermont's tax expenditures and draft legislation, in bill form, providing a statutory purpose for each tax expenditure.

* * * Joint Fiscal Office * * *

Sec. 8. 32 V.S.A. § 3102(l) is added to read:

(l) The Commissioner shall provide the Joint Fiscal Office with state return and return information necessary for the Joint Fiscal Office or its agents to perform its duties, including conducting their own statistical studies, forecasts, and fiscal analysis.

* * * Property Taxes * * *

Sec. 9. 32 V.S.A. § 3802(18) is added to read:

(18) Any parcel of land that provides public access to public waters, as defined in 10 V.S.A. § 1422(6), and that is also:

(A) owned by the Town of Hardwick, and located in Greensboro, Vermont, or

(B) owned by the Town of Thetford, and located in Fairlee, Vermont, and West Fairlee, Vermont.

Sec. 10. 32 V.S.A. § 3802a is added to read:

§ 3802a. REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE INSURANCE INFORMATION

Before April 1 of each year, owners of property exempt from taxation under subdivisions 3802(4)–(6), (9), and (12)–(15) and under subdivisions 5401(10)(D), (F), (G), and (J) of this title shall provide their local assessing officials with information regarding the insurance replacement cost of the exempt property or with a written explanation of why the property is not insured. There is a rebuttable presumption that the insurance replacement value is the value that should be entered in the grand list under subdivision 4152(a)(6) of this title.

Sec. 11. STUDY COMMITTEE ON CERTAIN PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS

(a) Creation of committee. There is created a Property Tax Exemption Study Committee to study issues related to properties that fall within the public, pious, and charitable property tax exemption in 32 V.S.A. § 3802(4). The Committee shall study and make recommendations related to the definition, listing, valuation, and tax treatment of properties within this exemption.

(b) Membership. The Property Tax Exemption Study Committee shall be composed of seven members. Four members of the Committee shall be members of the General Assembly. The Committee on Committees of the Senate shall appoint two members of the Senate, not from the same political party, and the Speaker of the House shall appoint two members of the House, not from the same political party. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee shall be legislative members selected by all members of the Committee. Three members of the Committee shall be as follows:

(1) the Director of the Division of Property Valuation and Review;

(2) one member from Vermont's League of Cities and Towns, chosen by its board of directors; and

(3) one member of the Vermont Assessors and Listers Association, chosen by its board of directors.

(c) Powers and duties.

(1) The Committee shall study the definition, listing practices, valuation, and tax treatment of properties within the public, pious, and charitable exemption, including the following:

(A) ways to clarify the definitions of properties that fall within this exemption, including recreational facilities, educational facilities, and publically owned land and facilities;

(B) guidelines to ensure a uniform listing practice of public, pious, and charitable properties in different municipalities;

(C) methods of providing a valuation for properties within this exemption; and

(D) whether the policy justification for these exemptions continues to be warranted and whether a different system of taxation or exemption of these properties may be more appropriate.

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Committee shall have the assistance of the Joint Fiscal Office, the Office of Legislative Council, and the Department of Taxes.

(d) Report. By January 15, 2014, the Committee shall report to the Senate Committee on Finance and the House Committee on Ways and Means its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(e) Number of meetings; term of Committee. The Committee may meet no more than six times, and shall cease to exist on January 16, 2014.

Sec. 12. 2008 Acts and Resolves No. 190, Sec. 40, as amended by 2010 Acts and Resolves No. 160, Sec. 22, as amended by 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 45, Sec. 13f, is further amended to read:

Sec. 40. EDUCATION PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION FOR
~~SKATING RINKS~~ SKATING RINKS USED FOR PUBLIC
SCHOOLS

Real and personal property operated as a skating rink, owned and operated on a nonprofit basis but not necessarily by the same entity, and which, in the most recent calendar year, provided facilities to local public schools for a sport officially recognized by the Vermont Principals' Association shall be exempt from 50 percent of the education property taxes for fiscal ~~year 2012~~ years 2013 and 2014 only.

Sec. 13. 32 V.S.A. § 3850 is added to read:

§ 3850. BLIGHTED PROPERTY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

(a) At an annual or special meeting, a municipality may vote to authorize the legislative body of the municipality to exempt from municipal taxes for a period not to exceed five years the value of improvements made to dwelling units certified as blighted. As used in this section, "dwelling unit" means a building or the part of a building that is used as a primary home, residence, or sleeping place by one or more persons who maintain a household.

(b) If a municipality votes to approve the exemption described in subsection (a) of this section, the legislative body of the municipality shall appoint an independent review committee that is authorized to certify dwelling units in the municipality as blighted and exempt the value of improvements made to these dwelling units.

(c) As used in this section, a dwelling unit may be certified as blighted when it exhibits objectively determinable signs of deterioration sufficient to constitute a threat to human health, safety, and public welfare.

(d) If a dwelling unit is certified as blighted under subsection (b) of this section, the exemption shall take effect on the April 1 following the certification of the dwelling unit.

Sec. 14. 32 V.S.A. § 6066a(i) is amended to read:

(i) An owner filing a new or corrected declaration, or rescinding an erroneous declaration, after ~~September 1~~ October 15 shall not be entitled to a refund resulting from the correct property classification; and any additional property tax and interest which would result from the correct classification shall not be assessed as tax and interest, but shall instead constitute an additional penalty, to be assessed and collected in the same manner as penalties under subsection (g) of this section. Any change in property classification under this subsection shall not be entered on the grand list.

* * * Income Taxes * * *

Sec. 15. 32 V.S.A. § 5811(21) is amended to read:

(21) “Taxable income” means federal taxable income determined without regard to ~~Section 168(k) of the Internal Revenue Code~~ 26 U.S.C. § 168(k) and:

(A) Increased by the following items of income (to the extent such income is excluded from federal adjusted gross income):

(i) interest income from non-Vermont state and local obligations;

(ii) dividends or other distributions from any fund to the extent they are attributable to non-Vermont state or local obligations; ~~and~~

(iii) the amount in excess of \$5,000.00 of state and local income taxes deducted from federal adjusted gross income for the taxable year, but in no case in an amount that will reduce total itemized deductions below the standard deduction allowable to the taxpayer; ~~and~~

(iv) the amount in excess of \$12,000.00 of home mortgage interest deducted from federal adjusted gross income for the taxable year, but in no case in an amount that will reduce total itemized deductions below the standard deduction allowable to the taxpayer; and

* * *

Sec. 16. 32 V.S.A. § 5822(a)(6) is added to read

(6) If the federal adjusted gross income of the taxpayer exceeds \$125,000.00, then the tax calculated under this subsection shall be the greater of the tax calculated under subdivisions (1)–(5) of this subsection or three percent of the taxpayer’s federal adjusted gross income.

Sec. 17. 32 V.S.A. § 5825a(a) is amended to read:

(a) A taxpayer of this ~~state~~ State with taxable income of less than \$150,000.00, including each spouse filing a joint return, shall be eligible for a nonrefundable credit against the tax imposed under section 5822 of this title of 10 percent of the first \$2,500.00 per beneficiary, contributed by the taxpayer during the taxable year to a Vermont higher education investment plan account under 16 V.S.A. chapter 87, subchapter 7 ~~of chapter 87 of Title 16~~.

* * * Estate Taxes * * *

Sec. 18. 32 V.S.A. § 7402(14) is amended to read:

(14) “Vermont taxable estate” means ~~the value of the Vermont gross estate, reduced by the proportion of the deductions and exemptions from the value of the federal gross estate allowable under the laws of the United States, which the value of the Vermont gross estate bears to the value of the federal gross estate~~ federal taxable estate plus the federal taxable gifts of the decedent with no deduction under 26 U.S.C. § 2058.

Sec. 19. 32 V.S.A. § 7442a is amended to read:

§ 7442a. IMPOSITION OF A VERMONT ESTATE TAX AND RATE OF TAX

(a) A tax is hereby imposed on the transfer of the Vermont estate of every decedent dying on or after January 1, 2002, who, at the time of death, was a resident of this state. The base amount of this tax shall be ~~a sum equal to the amount of the credit for state death taxes allowable to a decedent’s estate under Section 2011 of the Internal Revenue Code as in effect on January 1, 2001.~~ calculated as follows:

(1) there shall be no tax owed for Vermont taxable estates with a value of \$2,750,000.00 or less;

(2) for estates with a Vermont taxable estate value of over \$2,750,000.00 but equal to or less than the annual indexed basic exclusion amount under 26 U.S.C. § 2010(c)(3), the rate of tax shall be 10 percent of the Vermont taxable estate over \$2,750,000.00; and

(3) for estates with a Vermont taxable estate value greater than the annual indexed basic exclusion amount under 26 U.S.C. § 2010(c)(3), the tax shall be the tax calculated under subdivision (2) of this subsection, plus 16 percent of the Vermont taxable estate over the annual indexed amount of the federal applicable exclusion.

(b) ~~This~~ The base amount calculated under subsection (a) of this section shall be reduced by the lesser of the following:

(1) ~~The~~ the total amount of all constitutionally valid state death taxes actually paid to other states; or

(2) A a sum equal to the proportion of the ~~credit~~ base amount in subsection (a) which the value of the property taxed by other states bears to the value of the decedent's total gross estate for federal estate tax purposes.

~~(b)~~(c) A tax is hereby imposed on the transfer of the ~~Vermont estate~~ Vermont real and tangible personal property within the State of every decedent dying on or after January 1, 2002, who, at the time of death, was not a resident of this ~~state~~ State. The amount of this tax shall be a sum equal to the proportion of the base amount of tax under ~~subsection (a)~~ subsections (a) and (b) of this section which the value of Vermont real and tangible personal property taxed in this ~~state~~ State bears to the value of the decedent's total gross estate for federal estate tax purposes.

~~(e) The Vermont estate tax shall not exceed the amount of the tax imposed by 26 U.S.C. § 2001 calculated as if the applicable exclusion amount under 26 U.S.C. § 2010 were \$2,750,000.00, and with no deduction under 26 U.S.C. § 2058.~~

(d) All values shall be as finally determined for federal estate tax purposes.

Sec. 20. 32 V.S.A. § 7475 is amended to read:

§ 7475. ADOPTION OF FEDERAL ESTATE AND GIFT TAX LAWS

The laws of the United States, relating to federal estate and gift taxes as in effect on ~~December 31, 2011~~ December 31, 2012, are hereby adopted for the purpose of computing the tax liability under this chapter, ~~except:~~

~~(1) the credit for state death taxes shall remain as provided for under 26 U.S.C. §§ 2011 and 2604 as in effect on January 1, 2001;~~

~~(2) the applicable credit amount under 26 U.S.C. § 2010 shall not apply; and the tax imposed under section 7442a of this chapter shall be calculated as if the applicable exclusion amount under 26 U.S.C. § 2010 were \$2,750,000.00; and~~

~~(3) the deduction for state death taxes under 26 U.S.C. § 2058 shall not apply~~ except that elections under 26 U.S.C. § 2056(b)(7) and under 26 U.S.C. § 2056A(a)(3) may be made for state estate tax purposes only if such an election is not made for federal estate tax purposes. The value of the Vermont estate shall include the value of any property in which the decedent had a qualifying income interest for life for which an election was made under this section.

* * * Uniform Capacity Tax * * *

Sec. 21. 32 V.S.A. § 8701(d) is added to read:

(d) The existence of a renewable energy plant subject to tax under subsection (b) of this section shall not alter the exempt status of any underlying property under 32 V.S.A. § 3802 or 5401(10)(F).

* * * Sales and Use Taxes * * *

Sec. 22. 32 V.S.A. § 9701 is amended to read:

§ 9701. DEFINITIONS

* * *

(31) Food and food ingredients: means substances, whether in liquid, concentrated, solid, frozen, dried, or dehydrated form, that are sold for ingestion or chewing by humans and are consumed for their taste or nutritional value. “Food and food ingredients” does not include alcoholic beverages ~~or~~ tobacco, or bottled water.

* * *

(48)(A) “Bottled water” means water that is placed in a safety-sealed container or package for human consumption. Bottled water is calorie-free and does not contain sweeteners or other additives except that it may contain:

(i) antimicrobial agents;

(ii) fluoride;

(iii) carbonation;

(iv) vitamins, minerals, and electrolytes;

(v) oxygen;

(vi) preservatives; and

(vii) only those flavors, extracts, or essences derived from a spice or fruit.

(B) “Bottled water” includes water that is delivered to the buyer in a reusable container that is not sold with the water.

Sec. 23. 32 V.S.A. § 9741(13) is amended to read:

(13) Sales of food, ~~food stamps, purchases made with food stamps, food products and beverages,~~ food and food ingredients sold for human consumption off the premises where sold and sales of eligible foods that are purchased with benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program or any successor program. When a purchase is made with a combination of

benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program or any successor program and cash, check, or similar payment, the cash, check, or similar payment must be applied first to food and food ingredients exempt under this subdivision.

* * * Satellite Programming Tax * * *

Sec. 24. 32 V.S.A. chapter 242 is added to read:

CHAPTER 242. TAX ON SATELLITE TELEVISION
PROGRAMMING

§ 10401. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Taxes.

(2) “Distributor” means any person engaged in the business of making satellite programming available for purchase by subscribers.

(3) “Satellite programming” means radio and television audio and video programming services where the programming is distributed or broadcast by satellite directly to the subscriber’s receiving equipment located at an end user subscribers’ or end user customers’ premises.

(4) “Subscriber” means a person who purchases programming taxable under this chapter.

§ 10402. TAX IMPOSED

(a) There is imposed a tax on provision of satellite programming to a subscriber located in this State. The tax shall be at the rate of three percent of all gross receipts derived by the distributor from the provision of satellite programming in this State.

(b) The tax together with a return in a form prescribed by the Commissioner shall be paid to the Commissioner quarterly on or before the 25th day of the month following the last day of each quarter of the taxpayer’s taxable year under the Internal Revenue Code. The Commissioner shall deposit the payments collected into the General Fund.

(c) To the extent they are not explicitly in conflict with the provisions of this chapter, the provisions of chapter 103 and subchapters 6, 7, 8, and 9 of chapter 151 of this title shall apply to the tax imposed by this section.

§ 10403. EXEMPTIONS

(a) The following transactions are not covered by the tax in this chapter:

(1) transactions that are not within the taxing power of this State;

(2) the provision of satellite programming to a person for resale; and

(3) the first \$30.00 of monthly charges paid by each subscriber for the provision of satellite programming which shall not be counted as gross receipts.

(b) The following organizations are not covered by the tax in this chapter:

(1) the State of Vermont or any of its agencies, instrumentalities, public authorities, or political subdivisions; and

(2) the United States of America or any of its agencies and instrumentalities.

Sec. 25. 32 V.S.A. § 10402(a) is amended to read:

(a) There is imposed a tax on provision of satellite programming to a subscriber located in this State. The tax shall be at the rate of ~~three percent~~ four percent of all gross receipts derived by the distributor from the provision of satellite programming in this State.

Sec. 26. 32 V.S.A. § 10403(a) is amended to read:

(a) The following transactions are not covered by the tax in this chapter:

(1) transactions that are not within the taxing power of this State; and

(2) the provision of satellite programming to a person for resale;

~~(3) the first \$30.00 of monthly charges paid by each subscriber for the provision of satellite programming shall not be counted as gross receipts.~~

Sec. 27. 32 V.S.A. § 10402(a) is amended to read:

(a) There is imposed a tax on provision of satellite programming to a subscriber located in this State. The tax shall be at the rate of ~~four percent~~ five percent of all gross receipts derived by the distributor from the provision of satellite programming in this State.

* * * Break-Open Tickets * * *

Sec. 28. 32 V.S.A. chapter 245 is added to read:

CHAPTER 245. BREAK-OPEN TICKET TAX

§ 10501. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter:

(1) “Break-open ticket” shall have the same meaning as in 7 V.S.A. chapter 26, § 901(1).

(2) “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Taxes.

(3) "Distributor" shall have the same meaning as in 7 V.S.A. chapter 26, § 901(3).

§ 10502. TAX ON DISTRIBUTOR SALES

(a) In addition to the annual licensing fee as provided in 7 V.S.A. § 904, there is levied upon each break-open ticket sold by a seller's agent in this State a tax to be paid by the distributor in the amount of three percent of the retail sales value of the ticket. For purposes of this section, "retail sale value" means the retail price stated on the ticket or, if no price is stated on the ticket, the price at which that type of ticket is generally sold.

(b) The tax together with a return in a form prescribed by the Commissioner shall be paid to the Commissioner of Taxes monthly on or before the 25th day of the month with respect to tickets sold in the month ending prior to the month in which the payment is due and shall be deposited into the Education Fund.

(c) The administrative provisions of chapters 103 and 233 of this title shall apply to the tax imposed by this section.

* * * Fuel Gross Receipts Tax * * *

Sec. 29. 33 V.S.A. § 2503 is amended to read:

§ 2503. FUEL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX

(a) There is imposed a gross receipts tax of 0.5 percent on the retail sale of the following types of fuel by sellers receiving more than \$10,000.00 annually for the sale of such fuels:

- (1) heating oil, kerosene, and other dyed diesel fuel delivered to a residence or business;
- (2) propane;
- (3) natural gas;
- (4) electricity;
- (5) coal.

* * *

Sec. 30. BANK FRANCHISE TAX STUDY

(a) Creation of committee. There is created a Bank Franchise Tax Study Committee to examine the taxation of financial institutions in Vermont.

(b) Membership. The Bank Franchise Tax Study Committee shall be composed of nine members. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee shall

be legislative members selected by all the members of the Committee. Four members of the Committee shall be members of the General Assembly. The Committee on Committees of the Senate shall appoint two members of the Senate, not from the same political party; and the Speaker of the House shall appoint two members of the House, not from the same political party. Five members of the Committee shall be as follows:

- (1) the Secretary of Administration or designee;
- (2) the Commissioner of Financial Regulation or designee;
- (3) the Commissioner of Taxes; and
- (4) two persons appointed by the Vermont Banker's Association.

(c) Powers and duties.

(1) The Committee shall study the taxation of financial institutions in Vermont, including:

(A) the policy considerations for a bank franchise tax versus a corporate tax on financial institutions;

(B) an examination of the tax burden on financial institutions;

(C) the history of the rates and base of the bank franchise tax; and

(D) recommendations for setting the rate of the bank franchise tax in an equitable manner.

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Committee shall have the administrative assistance of the Agency of Administration and the legal and fiscal support of the Department of Financial Regulation and the Department of Taxes.

(d) Report. On or before January 15, 2014, the Committee shall report to the Senate Committee on Finance and the House Committee on Ways and Means its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(e) Number of meetings; term of Committee. The Committee may meet no more than six times, and shall cease to exist on January 15, 2014.

Sec. 31. STUDY COMMITTEE ON BARRIERS TO THE WORKFORCE

(a) Creation of committee. There is created a Committee on Workforce Barriers to study how the totality of agency programs, tax credits, and subsidies affects the incentives for joining and remaining in the workforce.

(b) Membership. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee shall be legislative members selected by all the members of the Committee. The

Committee on Workforce Barriers shall be composed of seven members as follows:

- (1) the chairs of the Senate and House Committees on Appropriations;
- (2) the chairs of the Senate Committee on Finance and House Committee on Ways and Means;
- (3) the Secretary of Administration or designee;
- (4) the Secretary of Human Services or designee; and
- (5) the Commissioner of Labor or designee.

(c) Powers and duties.

(1) The Committee shall evaluate the totality of agency programs, tax credits, and subsidies that Vermont extends to low and moderate income Vermonters to determine if, collectively, they create financial incentives and mitigate social barriers to entering and remaining in the workforce. The Committee shall report any recommended policy changes that reduce financial or other barriers to entering the workforce, remaining in the workforce, or increasing an individual's participation in the workforce.

(2) For purposes of its study of these issues, the Committee shall have the administrative assistance of the Agency of Administration and the technical, legal, and fiscal assistance of the Agency of Human Services, the Department of Labor, and the Department of Taxes.

(d) Report. By January 15, 2014, the Committee shall report to the General Assembly its findings and any recommendations for legislative action.

(e) Number of meetings; term of committee. The Committee may meet no more than six times, and shall cease to exist on January 16, 2014.

* * * Repeals and Effective Dates * * *

Sec. 32. REPEAL

The following are repealed:

- (1) 2011 Acts and Resolves No. 45, Sec. 13a (wastewater permits).
- (2) 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 143, Secs. 41 through 43 (wastewater permits).

Sec. 33. EFFECTIVE DATES

- (a) This section and Sec. 12 (skating rinks) shall take effect on passage.
- (b) Secs. 1 (spirituous liquors), 4 (exchange plan surcharge), 5 (local option taxes), 6 (tax expenditures), 7 (joint fiscal committee report), 8 (joint fiscal

office), 11 (Exempt Property Study Committee), 13 (blighted property), 17 (Vermont higher education tax credit), 21 (uniform capacity tax), 22 (sales tax definitions), 23 (sales tax exemptions), 24 (satellite programming tax), 28 (taxation of break-open tickets), 29 (fuel gross receipts tax), 30 (bank franchise study), 31 (workforce barriers study), and 32 (repeals) of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013.

(c) Secs. 2 (employer assessment definition), 3 (employer assessment fund) and 9 (water access land) of this act shall take effect on January 1, 2014.

(d) Sec. 10 (insurance values) of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2014.

(e) Sec. 14 (homestead filing) of this act shall take effect on January 1, 2014 and apply to homestead declarations filed after that date.

(f) Secs. 15 (definition of taxable income) and 16 (minimum payment) of this act shall apply retroactively to January 1, 2013 and apply to taxable year 2013 and after.

(g) Secs. 18, 19, and 20 (estate taxes) shall take effect on January 1, 2014 and apply to decedents dying after that date.

(h) Secs. 25 (satellite tax rate) and 26 (satellite tax exemption) shall take effect on July 1, 2014.

(i) Sec. 27 (satellite tax rate) shall take effect on July 1, 2015.

(Committee vote: 6-0-1)

(No House amendments.)

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 1.

An act relating to consideration of financial cost of criminal sentencing options.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. CRIMINAL JUSTICE CONSENSUS COST-BENEFIT WORKING GROUP

(a)(1) A Criminal Justice Consensus Cost-Benefit Working Group is established to develop collaboratively a criminal and juvenile justice cost-benefit model for Vermont for the purpose of providing policymakers with the information necessary to weigh the pros and cons of various strategies and programs, and enable them to identify options that are not only cost-effective, but also have the greatest net social benefit. The model will be

used to estimate the costs related to the arrest, prosecution, defense, adjudication, and correction of criminal and juvenile defendants, and victimization of citizens by defendants.

(2) The Working Group shall:

(A) develop estimates of costs associated with the arrest, prosecution, defense, adjudication, and correction of criminal and juvenile defendants in Vermont by using the cost-benefit methodology developed by the Washington State Institute for Public Policy and currently used collaboratively by the Joint Fiscal Office and the PEW Charitable Trust for the Vermont Results First Project;

(B) estimate costs incurred by citizens who are the victims of crime by using data from the Vermont Center of Crime Victim Services, supplemented where necessary with national survey data;

(C) assess the quality of justice data collection systems and make recommendations for improved data integration, data capture, and data quality as appropriate;

(D) develop a throughput model of the Vermont criminal and juvenile justice systems which will serve as the basic matrix for calculating the cost and benefit of Vermont justice system programs and policies;

(E) investigate the need for and most appropriate entity within state government to be responsible for:

(i) revising the statewide cost benefit model in light of legislative or policy changes, or both, in the criminal or juvenile justice systems;

(ii) updating cost estimates; and

(iii) updating throughput data for the model.

(3) The Working Group shall be convened and staffed by the Vermont Center for Justice Research.

(4) The costs associated with staffing the Working Group shall be underwritten through December 31, 2013 by funding previously obtained by the Vermont Center for Justice Research from the Bureau of Justice Statistics, U.S. Department of Justice.

(b) The Working Group shall be composed of the following members:

(1) the Administrative Judge or designee;

(2) the Chief Legislative Fiscal Officer or designee;

(3) the Attorney General or designee;

- (4) the Commissioner of Corrections or designee;
- (5) the Commissioner for Children and Families or designee;
- (6) the Executive Director of State's Attorneys and Sheriffs or designee;
- (7) the Defender General or designee;
- (8) the Commissioner of Public Safety or designee;
- (9) the Director of the Vermont Center for Crime Victim Services or designee;
- (10) the President of the Chiefs of Police Association of Vermont or designee;
- (11) the President of the Vermont Sheriffs' Association or designee; and
- (12) the Director of the Vermont Center for Justice Research.

(c) On or before November 15, 2013, the Working Group shall report its preliminary findings to the Senate Committee on Judiciary, the House Committee on Judiciary, and the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions. The Working Group shall issue a final report to the General Assembly on or before January 1, 2014.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 47.

An act relating to protection orders and second degree domestic assault.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 15 V.S.A. § 1105 is amended to read:

§ 1105. SERVICE

(a) A complaint or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this chapter shall be served in accordance with the rules of civil procedure and may be served by any law enforcement officer.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 1103 or 1104 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order.

~~(c)~~ Abuse orders shall be served by the law enforcement agency at the earliest possible time and shall take precedence over other summonses and orders. Orders shall be served in a manner calculated to ~~insure~~ ensure the safety of the plaintiff. Methods of service which include advance notification to the defendant shall not be used. The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time, and place at which the order was delivered personally to the defendant. ~~A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 1103 or 1104 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued, and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued, shall be deemed to have been served.~~

~~(b)~~(d) If service of a notice of hearing issued under section 1103 or 1104 of this title cannot be made before the scheduled hearing, the court shall continue the hearing and extend the terms of the order upon request of the plaintiff for such additional time as it deems necessary to achieve service on the defendant.

Sec. 2. 15 V.S.A. § 1105 is amended to read:

§ 1105. SERVICE

(a) A complaint or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this chapter shall be served in accordance with the rules of civil procedure and may be served by any law enforcement officer. A court that issues an order under this chapter during court hours shall promptly transmit the order electronically or by other means to a law enforcement agency for service.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 1103 or 1104 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order. However, even when the court has previously notified the defendant of the order, the court shall transmit the order for additional service by a law enforcement agency.

(c) Abuse orders shall be served by the law enforcement agency at the earliest possible time and shall take precedence over other summonses and orders. Orders shall be served in a manner calculated to ensure the safety of the plaintiff. Methods of service which include advance notification to the defendant shall not be used. The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time, and place at which the order was delivered personally to the defendant.

(d) If service of a notice of hearing issued under section 1103 or 1104 of this title cannot be made before the scheduled hearing, the court shall continue

the hearing and extend the terms of the order upon request of the plaintiff for such additional time as it deems necessary to achieve service on the defendant.

Sec. 3. 12 V.S.A. § 5135 is amended to read:

§ 5135. SERVICE

(a) A complaint or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this chapter shall be served in accordance with the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure and may be served by any law enforcement officer.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 5133 or 5134 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order.

(c) Orders against stalking or sexual assault shall be served by the law enforcement agency at the earliest possible time and shall take precedence over other summonses and orders, with the exception of abuse prevention orders issued pursuant to 15 V.S.A. chapter 21. Orders shall be served in a manner calculated to ensure the safety of the plaintiff. Methods of service which include advance notification to the defendant shall not be used. The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time, and place that the order was delivered personally to the defendant.

~~(b)~~(d) If service of a notice of hearing issued under section 5133 or 5134 of this title cannot be made before the scheduled hearing, the court shall continue the hearing and extend the terms of the order upon request of the plaintiff for such additional time as it deems necessary to achieve service on the defendant.

Sec. 4. 12 V.S.A. § 5135 is amended to read:

§ 5135. SERVICE

(a) A complaint or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this chapter shall be served in accordance with the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure and may be served by any law enforcement officer. A court that issues an order under this chapter during court hours shall promptly transmit the order electronically or by other means to a law enforcement agency for service.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 5133 or 5134 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order.

However, even when the court has previously notified the defendant of the order, the court shall transmit the order for additional service by a law enforcement agency.

(c) Orders against stalking or sexual assault shall be served by the law enforcement agency at the earliest possible time and shall take precedence over other summonses and orders, with the exception of abuse prevention orders issued pursuant to 15 V.S.A. chapter 21. Orders shall be served in a manner calculated to ensure the safety of the plaintiff. Methods of service which include advance notification to the defendant shall not be used. The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time, and place that the order was delivered personally to the defendant.

(d) If service of a notice of hearing issued under section 5133 or 5134 of this title cannot be made before the scheduled hearing, the court shall continue the hearing and extend the terms of the order upon request of the plaintiff for such additional time as it deems necessary to achieve service on the defendant.

Sec. 5. 33 V.S.A. § 6937 is amended to read:

§ 6937. SERVICE

(a) A petition or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this subchapter shall be served by any sheriff or constable or any municipal or state police officer in accordance with the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 6935 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order.

(c) The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time and place at which the order was delivered personally to the defendant.

Sec. 6. 33 V.S.A. § 6937 is amended to read:

§ 6937. SERVICE

(a) A petition or ex parte temporary order or final order issued under this subchapter shall be served by any sheriff or constable or any municipal or state police officer in accordance with the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure. A court that issues an order under this chapter during court hours shall promptly transmit the order electronically or by other means to a law enforcement agency for service.

(b) A defendant who attends a hearing held under section 6935 of this title at which a temporary or final order under this chapter is issued and who receives notice from the court on the record that the order has been issued shall be deemed to have been served. A defendant notified by the court on the record shall be required to adhere immediately to the provisions of the order. However, even when the court has previously notified the defendant of the order, the court shall transmit the order for additional service by a law enforcement agency.

(c) The person making service shall file a return of service with the court stating the date, time and place at which the order was delivered personally to the defendant.

Sec. 7. 12 V.S.A. § 5136 is amended to read:

§ 5136. PROCEDURE

(a) Except as otherwise specified in this chapter, proceedings commenced under this chapter shall be in accordance with the Vermont Rules of Civil Procedure and shall be in addition to any other available civil or criminal remedies.

(b) ~~The court administrator~~ Court Administrator is authorized to contract with public or private agencies to assist plaintiffs to seek relief and to gain access to superior court. Law enforcement agencies shall assist in carrying out the intent of this section.

(c) ~~The office~~ Office of the ~~court administrator~~ Court Administrator shall ensure that the superior court has procedures in place so that the contents of orders and pendency of other proceedings can be known to all courts for cases in which an order against stalking or sexual assault proceeding is related to a criminal proceeding.

(d) Unless otherwise ordered by the court, an order issued pursuant to sections 5133 and 5134 of this title shall not be stayed pending an appeal.

Sec. 8. 15 V.S.A. § 1103 is amended to read:

§ 1103. REQUESTS FOR RELIEF

(a) Any family or household member may seek relief from abuse by another family or household member on behalf of him or herself or his or her children by filing a complaint under this chapter. The plaintiff shall submit an affidavit in support of the order.

* * *

(c)(1) The court shall make such orders as it deems necessary to protect the plaintiff or the children, or both, if the court finds that the defendant has abused the plaintiff, and:

* * *

(2) The court order may include the following:

(A) an order that the defendant refrain from abusing the plaintiff, his or her children, or both and from interfering with their personal liberty, including restrictions on the defendant's ability to contact the plaintiff or the children in person, by phone, or by mail and restrictions prohibiting the defendant from coming within a fixed distance of the plaintiff, the children, the plaintiff's residence, or other designated locations where the plaintiff or children are likely to spend time;

(B) an order that the defendant immediately vacate the household and that the plaintiff be awarded sole possession of a residence;

(C) a temporary award of parental rights and responsibilities in accordance with the criteria in section 665 of this title;

(D) an order for parent-child contact under such conditions as are necessary to protect the child or the plaintiff, or both, from abuse. An order for parent-child contact may if necessary include conditions under which the plaintiff may deny parent-child contact pending further order of the court;

(E) if the court finds that the defendant has a duty to support the plaintiff, an order that the defendant pay the plaintiff's living expenses for a fixed period of time not to exceed three months;

(F) if the court finds that the defendant has a duty to support the child or children, a temporary order of child support pursuant to chapter 5 of this title, for a period not to exceed three months. A support order granted under this section may be extended if the relief from abuse proceeding is consolidated with an action for legal separation, divorce, or parentage;

(G) an order concerning the possession, care, and control of any animal owned, possessed, leased, kept, or held as a pet by either party or a minor child residing in the household;

(H) an order that the defendant return any personal documentation in his or her possession, including immigration documentation, birth certificates, and identification cards:

(i) pertaining to the plaintiff; or

(ii) pertaining to the plaintiff's children if relief is sought for the children or for good cause shown.

* * *

Sec. 9. 15 V.S.A. § 1104 is amended to read:

§ 1104. EMERGENCY RELIEF

(a) In accordance with the rules of civil procedure, temporary orders under this chapter may be issued ex parte, without notice to defendant, upon motion and findings by the court that defendant has abused plaintiff, his or her children, or both. The plaintiff shall submit an affidavit in support of the order. Relief under this section shall be limited as follows:

(1) ~~upon~~ Upon a finding that there is an immediate danger of further abuse, an order may be granted requiring the defendant:

(A) to refrain from abusing the plaintiff, his or her children, or both, or from cruelly treating as defined in 13 V.S.A. § 352 or 352a or killing any animal owned, possessed, leased, kept, or held as a pet by either party or a minor child residing in the household; ~~and~~

(B) to refrain from interfering with the plaintiff's personal liberty, the personal liberty of plaintiff's children, or both; and

(C) to refrain from coming within a fixed distance of the plaintiff, the plaintiff's children, the plaintiff's residence, or the plaintiff's place of employment.

(2) ~~upon~~ Upon a finding that the plaintiff, his or her children, or both have been forced from the household and will be without shelter unless the defendant is ordered to vacate the premises, the court may order the defendant to vacate immediately the household and may order sole possession of the premises to the plaintiff;

(3) ~~upon~~ Upon a finding that there is immediate danger of physical or emotional harm to minor children, the court may award temporary custody of these minor children to the plaintiff or to other persons.

* * *

Sec. 10. 15 V.S.A. § 1152 is amended to read:

§ 1152. ADDRESS CONFIDENTIALITY PROGRAM; APPLICATION;
CERTIFICATION

* * *

(f) The Civil or Family Division of Washington County Superior Court shall have jurisdiction over petitions for protective orders filed by program participants pursuant to 12 V.S.A. §§ 5133 and 5134, to sections 1103 and 1104 of this title, and to 33 V.S.A. § 6935. A program participant may file a

petition for a protective order in the county in which he or she resides or in Washington County to protect the confidentiality of his or her address.

Sec. 11. 13 V.S.A. § 1044 is amended to read:

§ 1044. SECOND DEGREE AGGRAVATED DOMESTIC ASSAULT

(a) A person commits the crime of second degree aggravated domestic assault if the person:

(1) commits the crime of domestic assault and such conduct violates:

(A) specific conditions of a criminal court order in effect at the time of the offense imposed to protect that other person;

(B) a final abuse prevention order issued under ~~section 15~~ V.S.A. § 1103 of Title 15 or a similar order issued in another jurisdiction.

(C) ~~an a final~~ order against stalking or sexual assault issued under ~~chapter 178 of Title 12~~ V.S.A. § 5133 or a similar order issued in another jurisdiction; or

(D) ~~an a final~~ order against abuse of a vulnerable adult issued under ~~chapter 69 of Title 33~~ V.S.A. § 6935 or a similar order issued in another jurisdiction.

(2) commits the crime of domestic assault; and

(A) has a prior conviction within the last 10 years for violating an abuse prevention order issued under section 1030 of this title; or

(B) has a prior conviction for domestic assault under section 1042 of this title.

(3) For the purpose of this subsection, the term “issued in another jurisdiction” means issued by a court in any other state, in a federally recognized Indian tribe, territory, or possession of the United States, in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or in the District of Columbia.

* * *

Sec. 12. EFFECTIVE DATE

(a) Secs. 2, 4, and 6 of this act shall take effect on November 1, 2013.

(b) This section and all remaining sections of this act shall take effect on July 1, 2013.

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 151.

An act relating to miscellaneous changes to the laws governing commercial motor vehicle licensing and operation.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill as follows:

By inserting a new Sec. 2 to read:

Sec. 2. 23 V.S.A. § 102(d) is amended to read:

(d) The ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner may authorize background investigations for potential employees that may include criminal, traffic, and financial records checks; provided, however, that the potential employee is notified and has the right to withdraw his or her name from application. Additionally, employees who are ~~authorized to manufacture or produce~~ involved in the manufacturing or production of operators' licenses and identification cards, including enhanced licenses, or who have the ability to affect the identity information that appears on a license or identification card, or current employees who will be assigned to such positions, shall be subject to appropriate background checks and shall be provided notice of the background check and the contents of that check. These background checks will include a name-based and fingerprint-based criminal history records check using at a minimum the Federal Bureau of Investigation's National Crime Information Center and the Integrated Automated Fingerprint Identification database and state repository records on each covered employee. Employees may be subject to further appropriate security ~~clearance~~ clearances if required by federal law, including background investigations that may include criminal and traffic records checks, and providing proof of United States citizenship. The ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner may, in connection with a formal disciplinary investigation, authorize a criminal or traffic record background investigation of a current employee; provided, however, that the background review is relevant to the issue under disciplinary investigation. Information acquired through the investigation shall be provided to the ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner or designated division director, and must be maintained in a secure manner. If the information acquired is used as a basis for any disciplinary action, it must be given to the employee during any pretermination hearing or contractual grievance hearing to allow the employee an opportunity to respond to or dispute the information. If no disciplinary action is taken against the employee, the information acquired through the background check shall be destroyed.

and by renumbering the remaining section to be numerically correct.

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 161.

An act relating to mitigation of traffic fines and approval of a DLS Diversion Program contract.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill as follows:

By adding Sec. 1a to read as follows:

Sec. 1a. 2012 Acts and Resolves No. 147, Sec. 2(d) is amended to read:

(d) A person with ~~fewer than five~~ violations of 23 V.S.A. § 676 may apply to the DLS ~~diversion program~~ Diversion Program. Upon receipt of an application and determination of eligibility, the ~~diversion program~~ Diversion Program shall send the person a notice to report to the ~~diversion program~~ Diversion Program. The notice to report shall provide that the person is required to meet with diversion staff for the purposes of assessment and to complete all conditions of the diversion contract as provided in subsection (c) of this section.

CONFIRMATIONS

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Patrick Berry of Middlebury – Commissioner, Fish and Wildlife – By Sen. Hartwell for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/27/13)

Robert Ide of Peacham – Commissioner, Department of Motor Vehicles – By Sen. Kitchel for the Committee on Transportation. (4/18/13)

Brian Searles of Burlington – Secretary of Transportation – By Sen. Mazza for the Committee on Transportation. (4/19/13)

Keith Flynn of Troy – Commissioner of Public Safety – By Sen. Flory for the Committee on Transportation. (4/23/13)

Cory Richardson of East Montpelier – Member of the Vermont State Housing Authority – By Sen. Cummings for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (4/26/13)

REPORTS ON FILE

Reports 2013

Pursuant to the provisions of 2 V.S.A. §20(c), one (1) hard copy of the following reports is on file in the office of the Secretary of the Senate. Effective January 2010, pursuant to Act No. 192, Adj. Sess. (2008) §5.005(g) some reports will automatically be sent by electronic copy only and can be found on the State of Vermont Legislative webpage.

4. Report by Secretary of Administration pursuant to Act 156, Adj. Sess. (2012), Sec. 8 regarding supervisory union size and structure.